
Any individual requiring an auxiliary aid or service must contact the NDPERS ADA Coordinator 
at 328-3900, at least 5 business days before the scheduled meeting. 

 Board Meeting Agenda 

Location: WSI Board Room, 1600 East Century Avenue, Bismarck  
By phone:    701.328.0950     Conference ID: 618 133 974# 

Date: Tuesday, November 14, 2023 
Time: 8:30 A.M. Click here to join the meeting       

I. MINUTES
A. October 19, 2023 Special Meeting

II. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE CONSIDERATION

III. PRESENTATIONS
A. Actuarial Valuation – Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company (GRS)

IV. MISCELLANEOUS
A. Executive Director Retirement/Recruitment – Scott (Information)
B. Committee Assignments – Scott (Information)
C. 2024 Board Meeting Dates – Scott (Information)
D. December Board Meeting Discussion – Scott (Information)
E. Contracts Under $10,000 – Scott (Information)
F. Ratification of Board Action Items – Scott/Dean (Information)
G. Required Minimum Distribution Change – Scott (Board Action)

V. DEFINED BENEFIT
A. Retirement Plan Services Request for Proposal (RFP) – Katheryne (Information)

VI. DEFERRED COMPENSATION / DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
A. HB 1040 Implementation Update – Rebecca (Information)
B. Recordkeeper Request For Proposal Vendor Selection – Katheryne (Board Action)

*EXECUTIVE SESSION

VII. GROUP INSURANCE / FLEXCOMP
A. Uniform Group Insurance Consultant Request For Proposal Best And Final Offer Update

*EXECUTIVE SESSION – Katheryne  (Information)

VIII. MEMBER **EXECUTIVE SESSION
A. Retirement Benefit Appeal Case #829 –  MaryJo (Board Action)
B. Benefit Appeal Case #828 – Lindsay (Board Action)

*Executive Session pursuant to N.D.C.C. §44-04-19.1(9) and §44-04-19.2) to discuss negotiating strategy or
provide negotiating instructions to its attorney or other negotiator.

**Executive Session pursuant to N.D.C.C. §44-04-19.2, §44-04-19.2(1) and/or §54-52-26 to discuss    
confidential records or confidential member information. 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MmRhMjQzZDctNmMwNi00MDQ1LTljMTAtNmYzYmI4NTY5NDYz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%222dea0464-da51-4a88-bae2-b3db94bc0c54%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22fbd90691-a0fa-4f31-80c5-9924dc2515f4%22%7d


 
 
 
 

            Fax (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website www.ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Scott 
 
DATE:   November 14, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Actuarial Valuation Presentation 
 
Bonnie Wurst, our actuary from GRS, will provide the results of our July 1, 2023 actuarial 
valuations.  

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 ● PO Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

November 2023 Board Book Page 2 of 126



North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System
Presentation of July 1, 2023 Actuarial Valuation Results
November 14, 2023
Bonnie Wurst, ASA, EA, MAAA, FCA
Abra Hill, ASA, MAAA, FCA 1

Copyright © 2023 GRS – All rights reserved.

Attachment

November 2023 Board Book Page 3 of 126



Agenda
• GRS Actuarial Valuation Methodology and 

Approach 
• Demographic Data
• Funded Ratio Results
• Contribution Rate Results
• Reconciliation of Unfunded Liability, 

Actuarial Contribution Rate and Funded 
Ratio 

• Actuarial Valuation Results Key Takeaways
• Projections
• Summary of Board Actions on Actuarial-

Related Issues
• Actuarial Standards of Practice No. 4
• Questions
• Appendix

2November 2023 Board Book Page 4 of 126



3

GRS Actuarial Valuation 
Methodology and Approach 

November 2023 Board Book Page 5 of 126



Purpose of the Actuarial Valuation

• Determine Funding Status
• Develop Actuarial 

Contribution Rates and 
Compare to Statutory 
Rates

• Provide Accounting and 
Other Data
– Under the current 

accounting standards, a 
separate accounting 
actuarial valuation is 
performed

4November 2023 Board Book Page 6 of 126



Actuarial 
Valuation 

Report

Actuarial Valuation Process

Actuarial 
Assumptions and 

Methods

Funding Policy

Covered Member 
Data

Asset Data

Plan Provisions

Funded Status

Actuarial 
Contribution 

Rates

Accounting  
Information*

* Under the current accounting requirements, GASB 67/68 and GASB 74/75, a separate 
accounting actuarial valuation report is issued.

5November 2023 Board Book Page 7 of 126



Plan Changes

• Main System
– Closed to new entrants enrolled on or after January 1, 2025
– State employees participating in the Main System on January 1, 2025 with no 

more than 5 years of service will be eligible to irrevocably elect to transfer to 
the DC Plan 

– The funding policy has been updated to amortize the unfunded liability over a 
closed period from January 1, 2026 to June 30, 2056, beginning in 2026

– In August 2023, the plan received a one-time cash infusion equal to $135 
million

– The Main System is also a potential recipient of future state contributions of 
$65 million per biennium, contingent upon oil and gas revenue

• Public Safety with Prior Main System Service System
– Peace officers employed by the State are now eligible to receive the same 

benefits as members of the Public Safety group
– Enhanced benefit multiplier for Bureau of Criminal Investigation (BCI) group

 3.00% for the first 20 years and 1.75% thereafter
– Vesting changes from 3 years to 10 years for new BCI agents

6November 2023 Board Book Page 8 of 126



Upcoming Contribution Changes

7

Rates Set by Statute
Employer

2026 and Later

Member Before 2024 2024-2025 State
Political 

Subdivision
Main System Permanent Employees
- Hired before 2020 7.00% 7.12% 8.12% ADEC* 8.12%
- Hired after 2019 7.00% 8.26% 9.26% ADEC* 9.26%

Main System Temporary Employees
- Hired before 2020 14.12% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
- Hired after 2019 15.26% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Judges 8.00% 17.52% 17.52% 17.52% 17.52%

* Actuarially Determined Employer Contribution. The 2026 and 2027 contribution will be based on the ADEC from the 
July 1, 2024 valuation with the amortization of the unfunded liability determined on a level percent of payroll basis 
over a closed period beginning on January 1, 2026 and ending June 30, 2056.

November 2023 Board Book Page 9 of 126



Upcoming Contribution Changes

8

Rates Determined by the Board of Retirement
Employer

Member
Before 
2024

2024 and 
Later

Public Safety with prior Main System 
service 5.50% 9.81% 11.40%
- National Guard Members 5.50% 9.81% 11.40%

Public Safety without prior Main 
System service 5.50% 7.93% 9.16%

Member Employer
Before   
2024 2024 2025 and Later

Before 
8/1/2023

8/1/2023 to 
12/31/2023

2024 and 
Later

Public Safety with prior Main System 
service
- BCI Employees 6.00% 7.00% 8.00% 9.81% 20.67% 22.26%
- State Public Safety Employees 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% N/A 12.75% 14.34%

November 2023 Board Book Page 10 of 126



Upcoming Contribution Changes

• Highway Patrol Contributions
– The statutory employee and employer 

contributions will each increase by 0.5% of pay 
every year from January 1, 2022 to         
January 1, 2025, ultimately increasing both by 
2.00% of pay

– In July 2023, a $3 million one time cash 
infusion was received  

9November 2023 Board Book Page 11 of 126



Impact of Changes

• Changes that have no immediate impact but are reflected 
in the projections:
– The future closure of the Main System
– Future contribution increases 
– Main System change to actuarial funding policy beginning in 

2026
• The liability released by members electing to transfer to the 

DC Plan in 2025 is expected to be greater than the amount 
of assets transferred to the DC Plan. We estimated a 
savings of $16.9 million (0.3%) in the actuarial accrued 
liability (AAL) as of July 1, 2023. The estimate assumes that 
50% of eligible current members would elect to transfer to 
the DC Plan in 2025. 

10November 2023 Board Book Page 12 of 126



Impact of Changes

• The state's 2026 and 2027 contributions to the Main 
System will be based on the Actuarially Determined 
Employer Contribution (ADEC) as of July 1, 2024.

• The ADEC as of July 1, 2024 is projected to be $159.5 
million, or 11.47% of total projected pay for 2026 (including 
DC plan payroll for new hires after 2024). 
– The State’s portion of the ADEC is projected to be $103.1 

million.
– For comparison purposes, the State’s employer contribution 

prior to the 2023 legislative changes was projected to be 
approximately $49.7 million.

– This ADEC does not reflect any changes in discount rate or 
investment returns due to potential de-risking of the assets of 
the Main Plan in the future.  De-risking would increase required 
contributions.

11November 2023 Board Book Page 13 of 126



Impact of Changes

• The transfer of state peace officers from the Main
System to the Public Safety with Prior Main
System decreased Main System AAL by $9.0
million (0.2%) and increased Public Safety with
Prior Main System AAL by $12.6 million (7.4%)

• BCI benefit changes increased the actuarial
accrued liability of the Public Safety with prior
Main System service by $4.1 million (2.4%)

• Future contribution increases for the state peace
officer and BCI groups are intended to offset the
additional liability

12November 2023 Board Book Page 14 of 126



Selection of Actuarial Assumptions

13

What
Economic Demographic

• Investment Return • Retirement Rates
• Payroll Growth Rates • Promotional/Step Pay Increases
• Population Growth Rate • Disability

(Usually, a constant 
population size is assumed)

• Turnover
• Mortality

November 2023 Board Book Page 15 of 126



Actuarial Assumptions

14

Actuarial assumptions should be reviewed periodically (at least 
every three to five years) to ensure they continue to 
reasonably represent past and expected future experience
• Section 54-52-04.4 of the North Dakota Century Code 

requires an experience study once every five years 
• In 2020, GRS performed an experience study covering the 

period July 1, 2014 through July 1, 2019
• Recommended updated assumptions were adopted by the 

NDPERS Board in April 2020
• In addition, the investment return assumptions were 

updated for all plans in July 2022
• The next experience study will cover the period July 1, 2019 

through July 1, 2024

November 2023 Board Book Page 16 of 126



Actuarial Cost Method

15

Plan Actuarial Cost Method

Main System Entry Age Normal

Judges Entry Age Normal

Public Safety Entry Age Normal

Highway Patrol Entry Age Normal

Job Service Aggregate

RHIC Modified Aggregate*

November 2023 Board Book Page 17 of 126



Actuarial Cost Method  

• Present value of future benefits –
present value of all future benefits 
(PVFB) payable to current participants
(active, retired, terminated vested)

• Actuarial accrued liability – portion of 
PVFB allocated to prior years (equal to 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability plus 
assets)

• Normal cost – portion of PVFB
allocated to current year

• Future normal costs – portion of
PVFB allocated to future years

• Unfunded actuarial accrued liability –
difference between the actuarial     
accrued liability and assets

16

Future 
Normal Cost, 

$1,531

Assets, 
$3,900

($ Millions)

Unfunded 
Actuarial Accrued 

Liability $1,929

Actuarial 
Accrued 

Liability $5,828

Normal Cost 
$169

PVFB $7,528

November 2023 Board Book Page 18 of 126



Investment Return Experience

17

Current Assumed
System 2020 2021 2022 2023 2020 2021 2022 2023 Rate of Return

Main System 3.29% 27.00% -6.53% 7.83% 7.26% 10.38% 7.43% 6.00% 6.50%

 Judges 3.29% 27.00% -6.53% 7.83% 7.26% 10.38% 7.43% 6.00% 6.50%

Public Safety with Prior* 3.29% 27.00% -6.53% 7.83% 7.26% 10.38% 7.43% 6.00% 6.50%

Public Safety without Prior* 3.29% 27.00% -6.53% 7.83% 7.26% 10.38% 7.43% 6.00% 6.50%

Highway Patrol 3.31% 24.15% -6.55% 7.86% 7.34% 9.90% 6.87% 5.50% 6.50%

Job Service 2.76% 6.48% -5.90% 2.98% 3.89% 3.78% 1.73% 1.20% 3.00%

RHIC 5.00% 25.07% -14.72% 10.41% 7.02% 9.81% 5.20% 4.15% 5.75%

Estimated Rates of Investment Return
Market Value Actuarial Value

November 2023 Board Book Page 19 of 126



Actuarial Value of Assets
Asset Smoothing

• Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA or Smoothed 
Value of Assets)
– Recognizes the difference between the expected 

investment return using the valuation assumption 
and the actual investment return over a 5-year 
period

– Dampens volatility of actuarially determined 
contribution rates

18November 2023 Board Book Page 20 of 126



Actuarial Value of Assets

19

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

$4,000

$4,500

As
se

t V
al

ue

Millions

Valuation Date

Comparison of Actuarial (Smoothed) Value of Assets to 
Market Value of Assets for PERS

Market Value of Assets (MVA)

Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA)

November 2023 Board Book Page 21 of 126



Current Funding Policy

• Employer/employee contribution rates are 
based on fixed rates set by Statute

20

Plan
Employer Rate 
as of 7/1/2023

Employee Rate 
as of 7/1/2023 Total Rate Total Actuarial Rate

Main Systemd 7.43% 7.00% 14.43% 21.86%
Judges 17.52% 8.00% 25.52% 19.26%
Public Safety Witha 9.81% 5.50%b 15.31% 17.90%
Public Safety Withouta 7.93% 5.50% 13.43% 14.64%
Highway Patrolc 20.70% 14.30% 35.00% 55.37%
RHICd 1.14% 0.00% 1.14% 1.38%
Job Service 0.00% 7.00% 7.00% NA

November 2023 Board Book Page 22 of 126



Current Funding Policy – Excluding RHIC

• Actuarial employer contribution rate equals
– Employer Normal Cost, plus
– Amortization of Unfunded Liability

 Level percent of pay amortization
 Payment increases as a dollar amount and remains level as a 

percentage of pay
 Payroll is assumed to increase by 3.50% each year (3.00% for 

Judges)
 Amortization Period

 20-year open period (Main System, Judges, Public Safety, 
Highway Patrol)

 Closed period for Main System beginning January 1, 2026 and 
ending June 30, 2056

 Not currently applicable for Job Service due to large surplus and 
Aggregate cost method

21November 2023 Board Book Page 23 of 126



Current Funding Policy – RHIC

• Actuarial employer contribution rate equals
– The rate needed to pay off the unfunded liability 

and future Normal Cost contributions at the end 
of 20 years as a level percent of closed group 
(decreasing) payroll

– The remaining amortization period as of             
July 1, 2023 is 16 years

22November 2023 Board Book Page 24 of 126



Causes of Unfunded Liability

• Not contributing at least Normal Cost + Interest 
on the Unfunded Liability.

• Actual experience which is less favorable than 
assumed.  Examples:
– Lower rates of investment earnings;
– Higher salary increases;
– Earlier retirement date(s); and
– Lower rates of non-death terminations.

• Granting initial benefits or granting benefit 
increases for service already rendered.

23November 2023 Board Book Page 25 of 126



24

Demographic Data

November 2023 Board Book Page 26 of 126



Demographic Data 
PERS Plans

25

2022
Main Total Total Total

System Judges With Prior Main Without Prior Main PERS PERS Change

Membership Counts
Active Members 23,678                 57                  1,044                       240                                  25,019                 24,779                 1.0%
Retired Members 14,755                 66                  158                           18                                    14,997                 14,204                 5.6%
Inactive Vested and Non-Vested Members 16,914                 3                    499                           186                                  17,602                 16,283                 8.1%

Total 55,347                 126                1,701                       444                                  57,618                 55,266                 4.3%

Average Age (Active) 45.8                     56.0              36.7                         37.8                                45.4                     45.7                     (0.3)
Average Ben Service (Active) 9.1                       9.6                 6.9                            4.9                                   9.0                       9.1                       (0.1)
Total Base Payroll $1,222,870,520 $8,954,748 $71,555,079 $14,895,770 $1,318,276,116 $1,248,307,560 5.6%
Average Pay 51,646                 157,101        68,539                     62,066                            52,691                 50,378                 4.6%

Total Retiree Benefits $250,681,557 $3,921,734 $3,535,545 $228,899 $258,367,734 $240,526,769 7.4%
Average Annual Benefit 16,990                 59,420          22,377                     12,717                            17,228                 16,934                 1.7%

Statistics as of July 1
2023

PERS

Public Safety

November 2023 Board Book Page 27 of 126



Demographic Data 
Highway Patrol, Job Service, RHIC

26

2023 2022 Change 2023 2022 Change 2023 2022 Change

Membership Counts
Active Members 144                     151                  -4.6% 1                       1                       0.0% 17,283                 19,018                 -9.1%
Retired Members 143                     135                  5.9% 169                  175                  -3.4% 14,996                 14,290                 4.9%
Inactive Vested and Non-Vested Members 59                       55                    7.3% -                   1                       -100.0% 7,992                   7,639                   4.6%

Total 346                     341                  1.5% 170                  177                  -4.0% 40,271                 40,947                 -1.7%

Average Age (Active) 37.9 38.2 (0.3) 67.7 66.7 1.0 48.3 47.9 0.4
Average Ben Service (Active) 11.3 11.5 (0.2) 48.3 47.3 1.0 12.5 11.7 0.8
Total Base Payroll $11,991,087 $12,267,230 -2.3% $61,404 $61,332 0.1% $1,005,182,784 $1,032,405,030 -2.6%
Average Pay 83,271               81,240             2.5% 61,404             61,332             0.1% 58,160                 54,286                 7.1%

Total Retiree Benefits $6,474,882 $5,834,859 11.0% $5,296,063 $4,969,094 6.6% $16,040,935 $15,435,776 3.9%
Average Annual Benefit 45,279               43,221             4.8% 31,338             28,395             10.4% 1,070                   1,080                   -0.9%

Highway Patrol Job Service 
Statistics as of July 1 Statistics as of July 1

RHIC
Statistics as of July 1

November 2023 Board Book Page 28 of 126



27

Funded Ratio Results 

November 2023 Board Book Page 29 of 126



Funded Ratio Results 
All Plans – Actuarial Value of Assets

28

Main Highway Job
Valuation Results System Judges With Prior Main Without Prior Main Patrol Service RHIC
Actuarial Accrued Liability 5,559,270,755$   59,565,058$       187,025,504$         22,264,260$                  146,506,155$     72,153,664$       268,293,176$   
Actuarial Value of Assets 3,683,545,963     67,034,043         128,273,097           20,695,406                    100,221,026       88,500,118         175,539,018     
2023 Unfunded Actuarial Liability 1,875,724,792     (7,468,985)          58,752,407             1,568,854                       46,285,129         (16,346,454)        92,754,158       
UAL as Percent of Payroll 153% -83% 82% 11% 386% -26621% 9%

2022 Unfunded Actuarial Liability 1,750,648,216$   (6,721,299)$        38,432,559$           860,033$                        43,238,171$       (22,087,227)$     93,323,552$     

2023 Funded Ratio 66.3% 112.5% 68.6% 93.0% 68.4% 122.7% 65.4%
2022 Funded Ratio 67.0% 111.6% 74.9% 95.4% 69.0% 131.3% 64.6%

Public Safety

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

140.00%

Funded Ratio

November 2023 Board Book Page 30 of 126



Funded Ratio Results 
All Plans – Actuarial/Market Value

29

Main Highway Job
Valuation Results System Judges With Prior Main Without Prior Main Patrol Service RHIC
2023 Unfunded Actuarial Liability (AVA) 1,875,724,792$   (7,468,985)$        58,752,407$           1,568,854$                    46,285,129$       (16,346,454)$     92,754,158$     
2022 Unfunded Actuarial Liability (AVA) 1,750,648,216     (6,721,299)          38,432,559             860,033                          43,238,171         (22,087,227)        93,323,552       
2023 Unfunded Actuarial Liability (MVA) 1,928,252,351     (6,513,076)          60,581,588             1,863,972                       48,471,033         (11,331,656)        99,975,124       
2022 Unfunded Actuarial Liability (MVA) 1,859,222,378     (4,748,400)          41,930,672             1,402,623                       47,356,567         (15,669,612)        109,485,313     

2023 Funded Ratio (AVA) 66.3% 112.5% 68.6% 93.0% 68.4% 122.7% 65.4%
2022 Funded Ratio (AVA) 67.0% 111.6% 74.9% 95.4% 69.0% 131.3% 64.6%
2023 Funded Ratio (MVA) 65.3% 110.9% 67.6% 91.6% 66.9% 115.7% 62.7%
2022 Funded Ratio (MVA) 64.9% 108.2% 72.6% 92.5% 66.1% 122.2% 58.5%

Public Safety

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

140.00%

2023 AVA Funded Ratio 2023 MVA Funded Ratio

November 2023 Board Book Page 31 of 126



30

Contribution Rate Results 

November 2023 Board Book Page 32 of 126



Contribution Rate Results 
Actuarial Contribution Rate (including employee rate)

31

Main With Without Total Highway 
Total Normal Cost Rates System Judges Prior Main Prior Main PERS Patrol
FY 2024 (2023 Valuation) 12.10%    24.89%    13.56%    13.99%    12.30%    31.01%    
FY 2023 (2022 Valuation) 12.20%    25.10%    13.26%    14.28%    12.37%    30.90%    
Amortization of Unfunded Liability Rates
FY 2024 (2023 Valuation) 9.76%    -5.63%    4.34%    0.65%    9.20%    24.36%    
FY 2023 (2022 Valuation) 9.50%    -5.20%    3.68%    0.38%    8.99%    22.25%    

Public Safety

21.70% 21.86%
19.90% 19.26%

16.94% 17.90%
14.66% 14.64%

21.36% 21.50%

53.15%
55.37%

-10.00%

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023

Total Normal Cost Rate Amortization of Unfunded Liability

November 2023 Board Book Page 33 of 126



Contribution Rate Results 
Comparison of Statutory and Actuarial Contribution Rates

32

Main Highway 
Valuation Results System Judges With Prior Main Without Prior Main Patrol RHIC
Statutory Contribution Rate 14.43% 25.52% 15.34% 13.43% 35.00% 1.14%
Actuarial Contribution Rate (AVA) 21.86% 19.26% 17.90% 14.64% 55.37% 1.38%
Statutory Rate Excess/(Deficiency) -7.43% 6.26% -2.56% -1.21% -20.37% -0.24%

Actuarial Contribution Rate (MVA) 22.13% 19.98% 18.03% 14.76% 56.52% 1.46%
Statutory Rate Excess/(Deficiency) -7.70% 5.54% -2.69% -1.33% -21.52% -0.32%

Public Safety

7.43%

17.52%

9.81%
7.93%

20.70%

1.14%

14.86%
11.26% 12.37%

9.14%

41.07%

1.38%

15.13%

11.98% 12.50%
9.26%

42.22%

1.46%
0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

45.00%

Statutory Rate Rate Based on Actuarial Value of Assets Rate Based on Market Value of Assets

November 2023 Board Book Page 34 of 126



33

Reconciliation of Unfunded Liability, 
Actuarial Contribution Rate and 

Funded Ratio

November 2023 Board Book Page 35 of 126



FY 2023 Experience

34

System Assets (AVA) Salary^
Other 

(Demographic)
Statutory 

Contributions
Assumption 

Changes
Change in 

Funded Ratio
Change in Actuarial 
Contribution Rate

Main System Loss Loss Loss Loss No Change -0.7% 0.16%

 Judges Loss Gain Gain Gain No Change 0.9% -0.64%

Public Safety with Prior* Loss Loss Loss Loss No Change -6.3% 0.97%

Public Safety without Prior* Loss Loss Gain Loss No Change -2.4% -0.02%

Highway Patrol Loss Gain Loss Loss No Change -0.6% 1.72%

Job Service Loss Gain Loss Gain No Change -8.6% NA

RHIC Loss NA Gain Loss No Change 0.8% 0.03%

November 2023 Board Book Page 36 of 126



Unfunded Liability Reconciliation
Based on Actuarial Value of Assets – All Plans

35

Main System  Judges With Prior* Without Prior* Highway Patrol Job Service RHIC

Unfunded liability at previous valuation 1,750,648,216$ (6,721,299)$      38,432,559$     860,033$          43,238,171$     (22,087,227)$ 93,323,552$     

Expected unfunded liability at current valuation
Normal cost for plan year 150,085,695       2,256,948         9,240,771         2,165,856         4,010,046         -                        4,855,667         
Interest on unfunded liability and normal cost 118,593,131       (364,688)           2,793,714         125,184             2,938,756         (662,617)         5,503,754         
Contributions using actuarial rate with interest 275,536,782       1,846,521         12,185,039       2,294,409         7,118,182         2,272               15,184,467       
Total expected change in unfunded liability (6,857,956)          45,739               (150,554)           (3,369)                (169,380)           (664,889)         (4,825,046)        

Total expected unfunded liability at current valuation 1,743,790,260    (6,675,560)        38,282,005       856,664             43,068,791       (22,752,116)    88,498,506       

Change due to:
Amount of contributions and expenses** 89,404,303         (492,145)           1,459,579         187,151             2,597,474         (6,238)              2,654,448         
Recognition of asset (gains)/losses 17,921,725         275,785             299,248             50,126               958,434            1,616,676       2,717,133         
Salary experience 12,259,453         (169,857)           1,253,120         737,664             (408,804)           (38,769)           -                          
Demographic and other experience*** 38,230,216         (407,208)           716,216             (262,751)           69,234               4,833,993       (1,115,929)        
Change in actuarial assumptions -                            -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                          
Changes in plan provisions (25,881,165)        -                          16,742,239       -                          -                          -                        -                          
Total change 131,934,532       (793,425)           20,470,402       712,190             3,216,338         6,405,662       4,255,652         

Unfunded liability at current valuation 1,875,724,792$ (7,468,985)$      58,752,407$     1,568,854$       46,285,129$     (16,346,454)$ 92,754,158$     

Public Safety

November 2023 Board Book Page 37 of 126



Funded Ratio Reconciliation 
Based on Actuarial Value of Assets – All Plans

36

Main System  Judges With Prior* Without Prior* Highway Patrol Job Service RHIC

July 1, 2022 Funded Ratio (AVA) 67.0% 111.6% 74.9% 95.4% 69.0% 131.3% 64.6%

Expected July 1, 2023 Funded Ratio (AVA) 68.5% 111.1% 77.2% 96.1% 70.6% 133.7% 67.1%

Change due to:
Amount of contributions and expenses** -1.6% 0.8% -0.9% -0.9% -1.8% 0.0% -1.0%
Recognition of asset (gains)/losses -0.3% -0.5% -0.2% -0.2% -0.7% -2.4% -1.0%
Salary experience -0.2% 0.3% -0.6% -3.1% 0.2% 0.1% 0.0%
Demographic and other experience -0.4% 0.8% -0.3% 1.0% 0.1% -8.8% 0.3%
Change in actuarial assumptions 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Changes in plan provisions 0.3% 0.0% -6.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Total change -2.2% 1.4% -8.6% -3.1% -2.2% -11.1% -1.7%

July 1, 2023 Funded Ratio (AVA) 66.3% 112.5% 68.6% 93.0% 68.4% 122.7% 65.4%

Public Safety

Numbers may not add due to rounding.

November 2023 Board Book Page 38 of 126



Actuarial Contribution Rate Reconciliation
Based on Actuarial Value of Assets – All Plans

37

Main System  Judges With Prior* Without Prior* Highway Patrol RHIC

FY 2023 Actuarial Employer Contribution 14.70% 11.90% 11.40% 9.16% 39.35% 1.35%

Expected FY 2024 Employer Contribution 14.34% 12.09% 11.26% 9.15% 38.00% 1.35%
Expected FY 2024 Employer Contribution with New Pay Base 14.05% 11.80% 10.85% 8.82% 39.68% 1.34%

Change due to:
Amount of contributions and expenses** 0.48% -0.32% 0.15% 0.10% 1.07% 0.03%
Recognition of asset (gains)/losses 0.10% 0.21% 0.03% 0.02% 0.50% 0.03%
Salary experience 0.06% -0.13% 0.11% 0.31% -0.22% 0.00%
Demographic and other experience 0.20% -0.30% 0.06% -0.11% 0.04% -0.02%
Change in actuarial assumptions 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Changes in plan provisions -0.03% 0.00% 1.17% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Total change 0.81% -0.54% 1.52% 0.32% 1.39% 0.04%

FY 2024 Actuarial Employer Contribution 14.86% 11.26% 12.37% 9.14% 41.07% 1.38%

Public Safety

Numbers may not add due to rounding.

November 2023 Board Book Page 39 of 126



Summary of Change in Results
All Plans

38

Main System  Judges With Prior* Without Prior* Highway Patrol Job Service RHIC

Based on Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA)
Unfunded liability at previous valuation 1,750,648,216$ (6,721,299)$    38,432,559$         860,033$               43,238,171$     (22,087,227)$ 93,323,552$     
Unfunded liability at current valuation 1,875,724,792    (7,468,985)      58,752,407            1,568,854              46,285,129       (16,346,454)    92,754,158        
Change 125,076,576       (747,686)         20,319,848            708,821                 3,046,958         5,740,773       (569,394)            

Based on Market Value of Assets (MVA)
Unfunded liability at previous valuation 1,859,222,378$ (4,748,400)$    41,930,672$         1,402,623$            47,356,567$     (15,669,612)$ 109,485,313$   
Unfunded liability at current valuation 1,928,252,351    (6,513,076)      60,581,588            1,863,972              48,471,033       (11,331,656)    99,975,124        
Change 69,029,973         (1,764,676)      18,650,916            461,349                 1,114,466         4,337,956       (9,510,189)         

Based on Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA)
FY 2023 Actuarial Employer Contribution 14.70% 11.90% 11.40% 9.16% 39.35% NA 1.35%
FY 2024 Actuarial Employer Contribution 14.86% 11.26% 12.37% 9.14% 41.07% NA 1.38%
Change in Actuarial Contribution Rate 0.16% -0.64% 0.97% -0.02% 1.72% NA 0.03%

Based on Market Value of Assets (MVA)
FY 2023 Actuarial Employer Contribution 15.29% 13.43% 11.74% 9.40% 41.47% NA 1.52%
FY 2024 Actuarial Employer Contribution 15.13% 11.98% 12.50% 9.26% 42.22% NA 1.46%
Change in Actuarial Contribution Rate -0.16% -1.45% 0.76% -0.14% 0.75% NA -0.06%

Based on Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA)
2022 Funded Ratio 67.0% 111.6% 74.9% 95.4% 69.0% 131.3% 64.6%
2023 Funded Ratio 66.3% 112.5% 68.6% 93.0% 68.4% 122.7% 65.4%
Change in Funded Ratio -0.7% 0.9% -6.3% -2.4% -0.6% -8.6% 0.8%

Based on Market Value of Assets (MVA)
2022 Funded Ratio 64.9% 108.2% 72.6% 92.5% 66.1% 122.2% 58.5%
2023 Funded Ratio 65.3% 110.9% 67.6% 91.6% 66.9% 115.7% 62.7%
Change in Funded Ratio 0.4% 2.7% -5.0% -0.8% 0.8% -6.5% 4.2%

Actuarial Employer Contribution Rate

Unfunded Liability

Public Safety

Funded Ratio

November 2023 Board Book Page 40 of 126



Summary of Key Actuarial Valuation Results
All Plans

39

Main System  Judges With Prior* Without Prior* Highway Patrol Job Service** RHIC

Membership Information
Active Members 23,678 57 1,044 240 144 1 17,283
Retired Members 14,755 66 158 18 143 169 14,996
Vested Former Members 16,914 3 499 186 59 0 7,992
Total Members 55,347 126 1,701 444 346 170 40,271
Total Base Payroll $1,222,870,520 $8,954,748 $71,555,079 $14,895,770 $11,991,087 $61,404 $1,005,182,784

Employee Contribution Rate 7.00% 8.00% 5.53% 5.50% 14.30% 7.00% 0.00%
Statutory Employer Contribution Rate 7.43% 17.52% 9.81% 7.93% 20.70% NA 1.14%

Actuarial Valuation Results (AVA)
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $5,559,270,755 $59,565,058 $187,025,504 $22,264,260 $146,506,155 $72,153,664 $268,293,176
Actuarial Value of Assets 3,683,545,963 67,034,043 128,273,097 20,695,406 100,221,026 88,500,118 175,539,018
Unfunded Actuarial Liability 1,875,724,792 (7,468,985) 58,752,407 1,568,854 46,285,129 (16,346,454) 92,754,158
Funded Ratio 66.3% 112.5% 68.6% 93.0% 68.4% 122.7% 65.4%
FY 2023 Estimated Investment Return (AVA) 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 5.50% 1.20% 4.15%

Employer Normal Cost Rate 5.10% 16.89% 8.03% 8.49% 16.71% NA 0.43%
Actuarial Employer Contribution Rate 14.86% 11.26% 12.37% 9.14% 41.07% NA 1.38%
Amortization Period from Statutory Rate (Years)*** 100+ None 100+ 100+ 100+ NA 40+
Statutory Contribution Deficit/(Surplus)*** 7.43% -6.26% 2.56% 1.21% 20.37% NA 0.24%

Actuarial Valuation Results (MVA)
Market Value of Assets $3,631,018,404 $66,078,134 $126,443,916 $20,400,288 $98,035,122 $83,485,320 $168,318,052
Unfunded Actuarial Liability 1,928,252,351 (6,513,076) 60,581,588 1,863,972 48,471,033 (11,331,656) 99,975,124
Funded Ratio 65.3% 110.9% 67.6% 91.6% 66.9% 115.7% 62.7%
FY 2023 Estimated Investment Return (AVA) 7.83% 7.83% 7.83% 7.83% 7.86% 2.98% 10.41%

Actuarial Employer Contribution Rate 15.13% 11.98% 12.50% 9.26% 42.22% NA 1.46%
Amortization Period from Statutory Rate (Years)*** 100+ None 100+ 100+ 100+ 40+
Statutory Contribution Deficit/(Surplus)*** 7.70% -5.54% 2.69% 1.33% 21.52% NA 0.32%

Public Safety

Based on Actuarial Value of Assets

Based on Market Value of Assets

November 2023 Board Book Page 41 of 126



40

Actuarial Valuation Results 
Key Takeaways

November 2023 Board Book Page 42 of 126



The Judges plan has a current funded ratio of over 112% and the statutory employer 
contribution rate is significantly higher than the actuarial rate.

Key Takeaways

41

The statutory employer contribution rate is significantly lower than the actuarial 
employer contribution rate for the Highway Patrol System, and is not expected to ever 
amortize the unfunded liabilities.

Although the contribution rates for the Main System as of July 1, 2023 are not adequate 
to improve the funding status of the plan, actuarial contributions beginning in 2026 are 
expected to bring the plan to full funding in 30 years.

When future contribution increases are reflected in the Public Safety plans, contributions 
are expected to amortize the unfunded liability in approximately 20 to 30 years. 

The RHIC contribution rate is expected to amortize the unfunded liability in 40+ years.

November 2023 Board Book Page 43 of 126



42

Projections

November 2023 Board Book Page 44 of 126



Actuarial Projections
PERS – Main System

43

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

Fu
nd

ed
 R

at
io

Valuation Year

Main System
Projected Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Assets) 

Based on Actuarial Valuation as of July 1, 2023

Based on 2023 Valuation - Actual FY 2023 Return, 6.50% Thereafter

November 2023 Board Book Page 45 of 126



Actuarial Projections
PERS – Public Safety with Prior Main System Service 

44

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

120.0%

Fu
nd

ed
 R

at
io

Valuation Year

Public Safety with prior Main System service
Projected Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Assets) 

Based on Actuarial Valuation as of July 1, 2023

Based on 2023 Valuation - Actual FY 2023 Return, 6.50% Thereafter

November 2023 Board Book Page 46 of 126



Actuarial Projections
PERS – Public Safety without Prior Main System Service

45

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

120.0%

Fu
nd

ed
 R

at
io

Valuation Year

Public Safety without prior Main System service 
Projected Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Assets) 

Based on Actuarial Valuation as of July 1, 2023

Based on 2023 Valuation - Actual FY 2023 Return, 6.50% Thereafter

November 2023 Board Book Page 47 of 126



Actuarial Projections
Highway Patrol

46

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

Fu
nd

ed
 R

at
io

Valuation Year

Highway Patrol
Current Statutory Contribution Rate 

(20.70% Employer* and 14.30% Employee*)
Projected Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Assets) 

Based on Actuarial Valuation as of July 1, 2023

Based on 2023 Valuation - Actual FY 2023 Return, 6.50% Thereafter

November 2023 Board Book Page 48 of 126



Actuarial Projections
RHIC

47

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

Fu
nd

ed
 R

at
io

Valuation Year

RHIC
Projected Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Assets) 

Based on Actuarial Valuation as of July 1, 2023

Based on 2023 Valuation - Actual FY 2023 Return, 5.75% Thereafter

November 2023 Board Book Page 49 of 126



Projection Results
• The change to an ADEC funding policy for the Main System results in 

projected full funding in 2056.
• The projection does not reflect any changes in discount rate or investment 

returns due to potential de-risking of the assets of the Main Plan in the 
future. De-risking would increase required contributions.

• The funded ratios of the Public Safety and RHIC plans are projected to 
steadily improve.

• Statutory rates for the Highway Patrol plan are not sufficient to improve 
the funded ratio.

• For Public Safety and Highway Patrol Plans, projections assume stable 
active member population (i.e., terminating and retiring members are 
assumed to be replaced with new members).

• For Main Plan, projection assumes stable active member population until 
plan closes to new members on January 1, 2025.

• For RHIC, projections assume stable active member population for 
participating plans.

48November 2023 Board Book Page 50 of 126



Projection Results – GASB Accounting Purposes

• Because the Highway Patrol Plan assets are 
projected to be depleted, GASB liabilities are 
based on a discount rate of 5.2% instead of 
6.5%, resulting in higher GASB liabilities

• GASB discount rates are extremely volatile 

49November 2023 Board Book Page 51 of 126



50

Summary of Board Actions on 
Actuarial-Related Issues

November 2023 Board Book Page 52 of 126



Summary of Board Actions on 
Actuarial-Related Issues

51

Updated assumptions first used in actuarial valuations as of                 
July 1, 2017, July 1, 2019, July 1, 2020, July 1, 2021 and July 1, 20221
Adopted updated actuarial equivalence factors, most recently effective 
January 1, 2021 and January 1, 20232
Adopted updated service purchase methodology which incorporated 
updated assumptions3
Adopted Return to Work methodology4
Adopted Employer Withdrawal Liability methodology5

November 2023 Board Book Page 53 of 126



52

Actuarial Standards of Practice No. 4 

November 2023 Board Book Page 54 of 126



What is ASOP No. 4?

• Measuring Pension Obligations and Determining Pension Plan 
Costs or Contributions

• Revised standards adopted in December 2021; effective for 
measurement dates on or after February 15, 2023

• Requires actuary to apply certain standards for:
– Selecting actuarial assumptions or methods
– Developing or modifying a cost or contribution allocation procedure

• Requires disclosures in actuarial reports
– Most controversial is the addition of calculations using a “Low-Default-

Risk Obligation Measure”

53November 2023 Board Book Page 55 of 126



Significant Changes to ASOP No. 4

• Assess implications of Funding Policy on expected future 
contributions and funded status
– Estimate how long before contributions are expected to exceed the 

normal cost, plus interest on the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability 
(UAAL)

– Estimate when plan is expected to be fully funded
– Assess whether the funding policy will result in asset depletion or  

benefit payment default
• Requires disclosure of a reasonable Actuarially Determined 

Contribution (ADC)
– Perpetual negative amortization is not reasonable

• Requires disclosure of a “Low-Default-Risk Obligation 
Measure” 

54November 2023 Board Book Page 56 of 126



Low-Default-Risk Obligation Measure
(LDROM)
• Discount rate “derived from low-default-risk fixed income 

securities whose cash flows are reasonably consistent with 
the pattern of benefits expected to be paid in the future”

• Examples include:
– U.S. treasury yields
– Rates implicit in settlement of pension obligations (including payment 

of lump sums and purchases of annuities from insurance companies)
– Non-stabilized ERISA funding rates for single employer plans 
– Multi-employer current liability rates

• The LDROM and the methods and assumptions used are 
required to be disclosed in the actuarial report, including any 
commentary on the significance of the LDROM

55November 2023 Board Book Page 57 of 126



56

Questions?

November 2023 Board Book Page 58 of 126



57November 2023 Board Book Page 59 of 126



Historical Trends 
Change in Funded Status

58

64.5% 68.6% 66.7% 70.7% 72.5% 72.2% 69.1% 71.1%
67.8% 66.9%

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

$7,000

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Total Public Employees' Retirement System

Accrued Liability Actuarial Value of Assets Market Value of Assets Funded Ratio (AVA)

Millions

Valuation Year

November 2023 Board Book Page 60 of 126



Historical Trends 
Change in Funded Status

59

72.3% 73.5% 70.2% 75.2% 77.4% 76.1% 71.2% 74.1% 69.0% 68.4%

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

$140

$160

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Highway Patrolmen's Retirement System

Accrued Liability Actuarial Value of Assets Market Value of Assets Funded Ratio (AVA)

Millions

Valuation Year

November 2023 Board Book Page 61 of 126



Historical Trends
Change in Funded Status

60

66.8% 69.4%

55.4% 58.3% 61.1% 63.2% 64.6% 68.6%
64.6% 65.4%

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

$300

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Retiree Health Insurance Credit Fund

Accrued Liability Actuarial Value of Assets Market Value of Assets Funded Ratio (AVA)

Millions

Valuation Year

November 2023 Board Book Page 62 of 126



Disclosures

• This presentation shall not be construed to provide tax advice, legal advice or 
investment advice. 

• The actuaries submitting this presentation (Bonita Wurst and Abra Hill) are 
Members of the American Academy of Actuaries and meet the Qualification 
Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinions 
contained herein.

• The purposes of the actuarial valuation are to measure the financial position of the 
North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System, calculate the actuarial 
employer contribution rates and provide actuarial reporting and disclosure 
information for financial reporting.

• The assumptions used in the calculation of the July 1, 2023 actuarial valuation 
results are based on an experience study for the five-year period ending            
June 30, 2019 as well as an analysis of investment return assumptions dated July 1, 
2022, and were provided by, and are the responsibility of, the NDPERS Board. 

61November 2023 Board Book Page 63 of 126



Disclosures

• Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current and 
projected measurements presented in this presentation due to such factors as the 
following:  plan experience differing from that anticipated by the economic or 
demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions; 
increases or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the 
methodology used for these measurements (such as the end of an amortization 
period or additional cost or contribution requirements based on the plan’s funded 
status); and changes in plan provisions or applicable law.

• This is one of multiple documents comprising the actuarial reports for the NDPERS 
Plans.  Additional information regarding actuarial assumptions and methods and 
important additional disclosures are provided in the Actuarial Valuation Reports as 
of July 1, 2023.

• If you need additional information to make an informed decision about the 
contents of this presentation, or if anything appears to be missing or incomplete, 
please contact us before relying on this presentation.

62November 2023 Board Book Page 64 of 126



 
 
 
 

            Fax (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website www.ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board   
 
FROM:   Scott 
 
DATE:   November 14, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Executive Director Retirement/Recruitment 
 
I am planning to retire effective January 3, 2025 – I will be eligible in December of 2024, but 
I would like to see the Main DB plan through its closure and the new DC plan launched.  
 
When the previous Executive Director, Sparb Collins, announced his retirement, the process 
to replace him took over twelve months. I would suggest trying to get the new Executive 
Director started at least a month early, possibly two or three months early, so that we, and 
the staff, and the Board, can work together for a time. As such, I suggest that you consider 
starting the recruitment process soon. A possible timeframe is below (which is somewhat 
dependent on the recommendation of the successful recruitment firm). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
During the last Director search, the Board appointed a Transition Subcommittee to guide the 
recruitment process. The Performance and Compensation Subcommittee may be a good 
option to fulfill this roll, or the Board could appoint a different group. 
 
The Board has previously considered doing a compensation study for this position. 
NDPERS is one of only a few state agencies in the entire country that administers not only 
retirement plans, but also all other benefit plans for state employees. As such, the Board 

Recruitment Firm RFP Released December/January 2024 
Recruitment Firm Selection February 2024 
Recruitment Firm Contract Complete March 2024 
Executive Director Opening Published April/May 2024 
Applications Due June/July 2024 
Final Interviews August/September 2024 
Director Selection September/October 2024 
New Director Begins November/December 2024 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 ● PO Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

November 2023 Board Book Page 65 of 126



has had questions in the past determining an appropriate compensation range for the 
Executive Director position. Right now it is pegged at the same rate as the Retirement and 
Investment Office (RIO) Executive Director. The State Investment Board is in the process of 
doing a compensation study for several RIO positions, including the Executive Director. A 
compensation study could be done simultaneously with the first few months of the above 
timeline. 
 
BOARD ACTION REQUESTED:  Provide staff with direction regarding the recruitment 
process. 

November 2023 Board Book Page 66 of 126



 
 
 
 

            Fax (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website www.ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board   
 
FROM:   Scott 
 
DATE:   November 14, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Board Subcommittee/State Investment Board Assignments 
 
The NDPERS Board has two standing subcommittees, the Audit Subcommittee and the 
Investment Subcommittee, and two ad hoc committees, the Election Subcommittee and the 
Performance Review and Compensation Subcommittee. The Board also has two members 
on the State Investment Board (SIB).  
 
The Audit Subcommittee membership is described in its charter:  
 

The audit committee will consist of two to five members with the majority of 
the members selected from the Board of Directors, and one may be selected 
from outside the organization. The Board or its nominating committee will 
appoint committee members and the committee chair. The Board should 
attempt to appoint committee members who are knowledgeable and 
experienced in financial matters, including the review of financial statements. 

 
Adam, Tyler and Nina Sand (at-large member) are the only remaining Audit Subcommittee 
members. As such, the Board should consider appointing one or two additional Board 
members and will need to assign a Subcommittee chair. The Audit Subcommittee typically 
meets quarterly. 
 
The Investment Subcommittee typically has between three and four members, and one 
alternate. Currently, the only remaining members are Adam (Chair) and Tyler, with Casey 
as the alternate. The Board Chair appoints these members. As such, the Board Chair will 
need to appoint one or two more members, and an alternate. The Investment Subcommittee 
also usually meets quarterly. 
 
We just completed an election, and so we do not need an active Election Subcommittee 
until the next election. 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 ● PO Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

November 2023 Board Book Page 67 of 126



 
The Performance Review and Compensation Subcommittee typically has three members. 
This Subcommittee’s purpose is to review the performance evaluations for the Executive 
Director and recommend a compensation figure to the full Board. This committee may also 
be a good option to serve as the Transition Subcommittee. Casey, Adam and Tyler are the 
current members. The Board Chair appoints these members. This Subcommittee meets on 
an ad hoc basis. 
 
Last Session, the Legislative Assembly reduced the number of PERS Board members on 
the SIB from three to two. Adam is the only Board member remaining on the SIB. As such, 
the Board needs to appoint an additional Board member to the SIB. We also usually have a 
Board member appointed as an alternate, in the event the regular SIB member cannot 
attend. There is currently no alternate. The SIB meets monthly. 
 
BOARD ACTION REQUESTED: Prior to the Board meeting, consider whether you would 
like to serve on one of these subcommittees or the SIB. The Chair and the Board will need 
to appoint the necessary Board members to the appropriate Subcommittees and the SIB. 

November 2023 Board Book Page 68 of 126



 
 
 
 

            Fax (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website www.ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Scott 
 
DATE:   November 14, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  2024 Meeting Dates 
 
Below is a list of proposed meeting dates, most of which are on the second Tuesday of 
each month other than in August and October. August is the third Tuesday because the 
annual National Association of State Retirement Administrators conference is on the second 
Tuesday. The second October date is on the last Tuesday of the month because of the time 
it takes our actuary to complete the valuations of our retirement plans. 
 
Board Action Requested: A motion to approve or modify the meeting dates is in order. 
 
NDPERS Board 2024 Proposed Meeting Dates 
 
January 9  WSI Board Room 
February 13  WSI Board Room 
March 12  WSI Board Room 
April 9   WSI Board Room 
May 14  WSI Board Room 
June 11  WSI Board Room  
July 9   WSI Board Room  
August 20  WSI Board Room (3rd Tuesday) 
September 10 WSI Board Room 
October 8  WSI Board Room (2nd Tuesday) 
October 29  WSI Board Room (4th Tuesday) 
November 12 WSI Board Room 
December 10 WSI Board Room 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 ● PO Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

November 2023 Board Book Page 69 of 126



 
 
 
 

            Fax (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website www.ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Scott 
 
DATE:   November 14, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  December Board Meeting Discussion 
 
Because of the special session, we ended up only having one Board meeting in October, 
instead of the two that had been planned. That delayed the actuarial valuation presentation 
to the November meeting, and the Board Planning Meeting to December. However, we 
have quite a bit of business we will also need done in December, and the planning meeting 
will take all day. As such, we propose having a second, special meeting in December. 
Please bring your calendars so we can see if there is a date we can meet. We can also 
discuss any additional topics Board members might want to address in that meeting. 
 
Board Action Requested: Set an additional date for a special meeting in December. 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 ● PO Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

November 2023 Board Book Page 70 of 126



 
 
 
 

            Fax (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website www.ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Scott Miller 
 
DATE:   November 14, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Contracts under $10,000 
 
 
Attached is a document that shows the contracts under $10,000 that I have signed since the 
last update. Please let me know if you have any questions on any of these contracts. 
 
This topic is informational only. 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 ● PO Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

November 2023 Board Book Page 71 of 126



Contracts Signed During 2023:
Vendor Amount Notes

NDIT -$             Service Level Agreement (January 2023)
Spherion Staffing ~      $7,200 Temporary Staffing for Admin Services
Marco 3,654.49$    Replacement of North & Batch Printers
Inter Office 1,179.44$    Chair
Central Services -$             Staff authorization to pickup printed materials
Inter Office 280.00$       Adjust height of workstation in scanning room
NDIT -$             Service Level Agreement (June 2023)
Callan -$             Recordkeeper RFP scope of work.
ND Safety Council 874.00$       AED/CPR training for 19 staff
Inter Office 2,323.88$    Chairs x 2
Inter Office 824.76$       Rising Desk 
GRS 9,000.00$    Programing for DC incentive
Inter Office 2,358.88$    Chairs x 2 

Contracts Signed Since Last Reported:
Vendor Amount Notes

Inter Office 824.76$       Rising Desk 
Inter Office 1,179.44$    Chair

November 2023 Board Book Page 72 of 126

Attachment



 
 
 
 

            Fax (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website www.ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board   
 
FROM:   Scott 
 
DATE:   November 14, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Ratification of Board Actions 
 
As a result of the Supreme Court’s decision finding Senate Bill 2015 unconstitutional, 
Assistant Attorney General Dean DePountis has advised that this Board will need to review 
the decisions made by the Board for the months of June, July, August, and September, and 
decide whether to ratify those actions. Dean will be available at the meeting. The decisions 
made during those months are as follows: 
 
June (nine Board members, eight attending, one absent) 
 

Minutes (passed by unanimous voice vote) 
Group Voluntary Vision Benefits Plan (BAFO request) (passed 8 yes, zero no, one 

absent (8-0-1)) 
Uniform Group Insurance Consultant RFP (passed 8-0-1) 
Health Insurance Plan Administrative Service Agreement Exhibits (passed 8-0-1) 
Board Election Results (passed 8-0-1) 
Audit Committee Charter and Internal Audit Charter (passed 8-0-1) 
Sagitec Maintenance Contract (passed 8-0-1) 
Presort Contract (passed 8-0-1) 
Office Lease (passed 8-0-1) 
Retirement Appeal Case #812 (Motion to Affirm Staff Decision and Deny Appeal 

passed 8-0-1) 
 
July (eleven Board members, all attending) 
 

Minutes (passed by unanimous voice vote) 
Empower Provider Status (passed 7-3-0 with Rep. Dockter abstaining) 
Recordkeeper Request for Proposal  

Contract Length (passed 11-0-0) 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 ● PO Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

November 2023 Board Book Page 73 of 126



In-State Advisor Preference (passed 11-0-0) 
Flat Fee Per Member for Balances >$1,000 (passed 11-0-0) 
In-person Vendor Interview (Passed 7-4-0) 

Highway Patrol Indexing (Passed 9-1-0, Mr. Volk abstaining) 
RHIC RFP Award to ASIFLEX (Passed 11-0-0) 
Appeal Case #820 (Motion to affirm denial of RHIC appeal passed 11-0-0) 
Appeal Case #821 (Motion to affirm denial of RHIC appeal passed 10-0-1) 
HB 1040 Implementation Date (Motion to affirm 1/1/25 effective date passed 8-3-0) 
Group Voluntary Vision Benefits Award (Passed 11-0-0) 
IT Consultant  

Approve additional spending not to exceed $10,000 (Passed 11-0-0) 
Approve ED authority to spend $10,000 each for IT improvement projects up 

to a total of $100,000 (Passed 11-0-0) 
Board subcommittee/SIB assignments (passed 11-0-0; however, since one member 

is no longer on the Board, this decision request is in another agenda topic) 
 
August (eleven Board members, all attending) 
 

Minutes (passed by unanimous voice vote) 
Recordkeeper RFP (passed 11-0-0) 
RHIC Contract Amendment (passed 11-0-0) 
Administrative Services (Health Plan) Agreement Exhibit B (passed 11-0-0) 
Medicare Part D Renewal with Humana (passed 11-0-0) 
FlexComp Voluntary Insurance Products (passed 11-0-0) 
Group Voluntary Vision Benefits Plan Contract (passed 11-0-0) 
Litigation conflict of interest (passed 4-3-0, four excluded) 

 
September (eleven Board members, all attending) 
 

Minutes (passed by unanimous voice vote) 
FlexComp Plan Document Updates (passed 11-0-0) 
Medicare Part D Contract Amendment (passed 11-0-0) 
Legislation Implementation – motion to approve the use of $250,000 from insurance 

reserves for the 2023-2025 biennium in compliance with SB 2140 to cover out-
of-pocket expense applied for members that receive diabetic supplies; and 
approval of the use of $30,000 from reserves to cover the expense of the 
required mailing (passed 11-0-0) 

Open Records Request (passed 10-1-0) 
Hardship withdrawal case #816 (motion to approve hardship withdrawal passed 11-0-
0) 

 
The materials for these meetings (other than the confidential information) can be found 
online: Past Events | NDPERS. Please let Jan Lund know if you would like the confidential 
information materials sent to you. 
 
Board Action Requested: A motion to ratify the above actions would be in order. You 
could take them all together, month-by-month, or individually, at your discretion. 

November 2023 Board Book Page 74 of 126

https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/past-events?field_event_category_target_id=28


 
 
 
 

            Fax (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website www.ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board   
 
FROM:   Scott 
 
DATE:   November 14, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Required Minimum Distribution Change 
 
The federal government has again increased the age at which retirees must receive a 
“Required Minimum Distribution” from a retirement account. For many years that age was 
71 ½. A few years ago the federal government raised it to age 72. In the SECURE 2.0 act, 
the federal government has now raised it to age 73, and have stated they will most likely 
raise it again in the future.  
 
NDCC section 54-52-28(2) requires us to follow the required minimum distribution rules 
under section 401(a)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code. Unfortunately, NDCC section 54-52-
28(2) also specifically provides the age 72 requirement. Given the change in federal law, 
and the probability of changes in the future, we would suggest removing the specific age 
and merely cite the federal law requirements, as follows. 
 

54-52-28. Internal Revenue Code compliance. 
2. The minimum distribution rules under section 401(a)(9) of the Internal 
Revenue Code, including the incidental death benefit requirements under section 
401(a)(9)(G), and the regulations issued under that provision to the extent 
applicable to governmental plans, as amended. Accordingly, benefits must be 
distributed or begin to be distributed no later than a member's required beginning 
date, and the required minimum distribution rules override any inconsistent 
provision of this chapter. For a member who attains age seventy and one-half 
before January 1, 2020, the member's required beginning date is April first of the 
calendar year following the later of the calendar year in which the member attains 
age seventy and one-half or terminates employment. For a member who attains 
age seventy and one-half after December 31, 2019, the member's required 
beginning date is April first of the calendar year following the later of the calendar 
year in which the member attains age seventy-two or terminates employment. 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 ● PO Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

November 2023 Board Book Page 75 of 126



Because this is a federal law we must follow, NDCC section 54-52-23 allows the Board to: 
 

1. Determine that any section of chapter 54-52 does not comply with federal statutes 
or rules; 

2. Adopt appropriate terminology to comply with those federal statutes or rules; and  
3. Request the approval of the Employee Benefits Programs Committee. 

 
Any modifications made in this manner are effective until the effective date of any legislation 
we propose to make the official modifications to the statute. 
 
We have asked for time at the EBPC meeting on November 16 to make the required 
request of the EBPC; this is the first EBPC meeting since the legislative session. We would 
appreciate the Board’s direction to do so. 
 
Board Action Requested: A motion to make the above determination that NDCC 54-52-
28(2) does not comply with federal statute, approve the above language and determine that 
the proposed amendment will bring the statute into compliance with federal statute, and to 
approve the submission of the above request to the EBPC to ensure we continue to comply 
with the required minimum distribution rules would be in order. 
 
 
 

November 2023 Board Book Page 76 of 126



   Fax (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website www.ndpers.nd.gov 

TO:   NDPERS Board  

FROM:   Katheryne Korom 

DATE:  November 14, 2023 

SUBJECT: Retirement Plan Services (RFP) 

We have included for your review a draft copy of the Retirement Plan Services RFP.  It has 
been reviewed by staff and our changes are included in the document. Proposers are 
required to submit a bid for actuarial and consulting assistance for the Defined Benefit Plans 
& Retiree Health Insurance Credit Program.  

Following are the key dates for the proposal process: 

Date Activity 

January 2, 2024 RFP is issued. 

January 12, 2024 Written questions regarding proposals must be received by 
NDPERS no later than 5:00 p.m. (CDT). 

January 31, 2024 NDPERS posts responses to all questions received. 

February 14, 2024 Proposals must be received by NDPERS no later than 
5:00 p.m. (CDT). 

Feb/March 2024 NDPERS review of proposals. 

March 2024 Finalist interviews, if deemed necessary by the NDPERS Board 

March/April 2024 Best and Final Offers due, if deemed necessary by the NDPERS 
Board 

March/April 2024 Selection and award of contract by NDPERS. 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System 
1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 ● PO Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director 
(701) 328-3900
1-800-803-7377

November 2023 Board Book Page 77 of 126



If you have any questions, additions, or changes to the Retirement Plan Services, we will be 
available at the NDPERS Board Meeting.   
 
 
Board Action Requested: Approve the Retirement Plan Services RFP and the timeline for 
the proposal process. 
 
 
Attachment 

November 2023 Board Book Page 78 of 126



North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System

Request for Proposal 

Project Name:  

Retirement Plan Services 

RFP Issue Date: January 2, 2024 

Proposal Due Date: February 14, 2024 

Proposed Effective Date: July 1, 2024 

1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 
PO Box 1657 

Bismarck, ND 58502-1657 
1-800-803-PERS (7377)  www.ndpers.nd.gov

Attachment

November 2023 Board Book Page 79 of 126

http://www.ndpers.nd.gov/


Request for Proposal 
Table of Contents 

 
 
 
 

Section  1 – Introduction  ...................................................................  3 
 
 
Section  2 – Background  ..................................................................  4 
 
 
Section  3 – Scope of Services ........................................................ 11 
 
 
Section  4 – Information Requests .................................................. 21 
 
 
Section  5 – Cost Proposal(Fees/Hours)  ....................................... 25 
 
 
Section  6 – Submission of Proposal  ............................................. 27 
 
 
Section  7 – Review Process  ........................................................... 33 
 
 
Section  8 – Confidential/Proprietary Information......................... 34 
 
 
Section  9 – Conflicts of Interest List .............................................. 35 
 
 
Section 10 – Offer (Agreements)  .................................................... 36 
 

  

November 2023 Board Book Page 80 of 126



SECTION 1 - INTRODUCTION 
 
This Request for Proposal (RFP) is issued for actuarial and consulting assistance for a 
twenty-four month period (July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2026).  In addition, the Board 
intends that the successful bidder will have the opportunity to renew its contract for two 
subsequent two-year periods if an acceptable agreement can be reached between the 
contractor and the Board.   

 
  

Date Activity 

January 2, 2024 RFP is issued. 

January 12, 2024 Written questions regarding proposals must be received by 
NDPERS no later than 5:00 p.m. (CDT). 

January 31, 2024 NDPERS posts responses to all questions received. 

February 14, 2024 Proposals must be received by NDPERS no later than  
5:00 p.m. (CDT). 

Feb/March 2024 NDPERS review of proposals. 

March 2024 Finalist interviews, if deemed necessary by the NDPERS Board 

March/April 2024  Best and Final Offers due, if deemed necessary by the NDPERS 
Board 

March/April 2024 Selection and award of contract by NDPERS. 

  

November 2023 Board Book Page 81 of 126



SECTION 2 - BACKGROUND 
 
The North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System is responsible for the 
administration of the State’s retirement, health, life, dental, vision, deferred compensation, 
flex comp, retiree health insurance credit, and EAP programs.  This proposal is for 
assistance in the retirement programs.   
 

Pursuant to 54-52-03, https://www.ndlegis.gov/cencode/t54c52.pdf, NDPERS is 
managed by a Board of Trustees. 

 
NDPERS is a separate agency created under North Dakota state statute and, 
while subject to state budgetary controls and procedures as are all state agencies, 
is not a state agency subject to direct executive control.  

 
 
The following are the areas of work for which the Board is seeking assistance  
 
A.   Defined Benefit Retirement Plans: 
 The NDPERS system (includes the main system, judges, and public safety plans), 

the Job Service plan and the Highway Patrol plan are defined benefit plans and 
provide benefits under two separate chapters of the North Dakota Century Code 
(NDCC).  NDCC Chapter 54-52 provides the benefits under the NDPERS Main, 
Judges, and Public Safety retirement plans.  NDCC Chapter 39-03.1 provides the 
benefits under the Highway Patrol retirement plan.  The Job Service retirement 
plan benefits are provided pursuant to that systems plan document.  A summary of 
the plan provisions is found on the NDPERS website at: https://ndpers.nd.gov/ 

 
 A copy of the 2023 valuations can be found at the same site under the 

Financial/Actuarial page: https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/about/financial-actuarial-
reports 
 
 
1.  Public Employees Retirement System 

 
a. Main System  

   The North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System (NDPERS) is the 3 
tier retirement plan for all state employees (excluding those in the Board of 
Higher Education eligible for TIAA/CREF), and employees of counties, 
cities, and school districts (excluding teachers) which have elected to 
participate. The Main plan will be closed to new entrants on or before 
January 1, 2025; all new eligible employees will become members of the 
new Defined Contribution plan. The following is background information on 
the main system: 

 
 
 

November 2023 Board Book Page 82 of 126

https://www.ndlegis.gov/cencode/t54c52.pdf
https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/about/financial-actuarial-reports
https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/about/financial-actuarial-reports


   Tier 1 New Hires Prior to 1/1/16: 
 

  Public Employees Retirement Plan 
 Chapter 54-52, NDCC 
 Employer Contribution:    8.12% 
 Employee Contribution:    7.00% 
 Total Retirement Contributions: 15.12% 
 
 Vesting in Disability Benefit:  180 days 
 Vesting in Retirement Benefit:  36 months 
 Normal Retirement: Age 65 or Rule of 85 

     
Retirement Formula: Final Average Salary x 2% x Years of Credited Service 

Example: $2000 x 2% x 20 = $800 
 

 
 Tier 2 (New Hires 1/1/16-12/31/19) 
 
  Public Employees Retirement Plan 

 Chapter 54-52, NDCC 
 Employer Contribution:    8.12% 
 Employee Contribution:    7.00% 
 Total Retirement Contributions: 15.12% 
 
 Vesting in Disability Benefit:  180 days 
 Vesting in Retirement Benefit:  36 months 
 Normal Retirement: Age 65 or Rule of 90 with minimum age of 60 

 
Retirement Formula: Final Average Salary x 2% x Years of Credited Service 

Example: $2000 x 2% x 20 = $800 
 
 
 Tier 3 (New Hires 1/1/20 and after) 
  Public Employees Retirement System 
  Chapter 54-52, NDCC 
  Employer Contribution:    9.26% 
  Employee Contribution:    7.00% 
  Total Retirement Contributions: 16.26% 
 
  Vesting in Disability Benefit:  180 days 
  Vesting in Retirement Benefit:  36 months 
  Normal Retirement: Age 65 or Rule of 90 with minimum age of 60 
 

Retirement Formula: Final Average Salary x 1.75% x Years of Credited Service 
Example: $2000 x 1.75% x 20 = $700 

 

November 2023 Board Book Page 83 of 126



 b.  Judges 
   The Supreme and District Court Judges in North Dakota, although a part of 

the NDPERS system, have a separate benefit program.  The following is 
background information on the judges system: 

  
  Public Employees Retirement Plan – Judge’s 
  Chapter 54-52, NDCC 
  Employer Contribution:  17.52% 
  Employee Contribution:    8.00% 
  Total Retirement Contributions: 25.52% 
 
  Vesting in Disability Benefit:  180 days 
  Vesting in Retirement Benefit:  60 months 
  Normal Retirement: Age 65 or Rule of 85 

   
 

Retirement Formula:   
First Ten Years: Final Average Salary x 3.5% x First 10 Years of Credited Service 
Second Ten Years: Final Average Salary x 2.8% x Second 10 Years of Credited Service 
Remaining Years: Final Average Salary x 1.25% x Remaining Years of Credited Service 

  
Example: 

$6861 x 3.5% x 10 = $2401.35 
$6861 x 2.8% x 10 = $1921.08 
$6861 x 1.25% x 5 = $  428.81 

$4751.24 
 
 

   c.  Public Safety - with Prior Service Credit & without Prior Service  
        Credit 

   These are also a part of the NDPERS system but with a separate level of 
benefits.  For actuarial purposes this group is divided into two groups, one 
with prior service and the other without prior service.  As mentioned earlier 
the National Guard Plan has been combined with the Public Safety Plan 
with Prior Service starting in 2015.  The following is background information 
on the Public Safety Plans: 

  
 Political Sub Public Safety With Prior Service (includes National Guard): 

- Employee Contribution – 5.50% 
- Current Employer Groups – 11.40% 

    (Contribution based on Normal Cost and past service credit liability) 
 
  Political Sub Public Safety Without Prior Service: 

- Employee Contribution – 5.50% 
- Current Employer Groups – 9.16% 

    (Contribution based on Normal Cost and no past service credit liability) 

November 2023 Board Book Page 84 of 126



 
 State Public Safety Plan: 

- Employee Contribution – 6.00% 
- Current Employer Groups – 14.34% 

    (Contribution based on Normal Cost and past service credit liability) 
 
 

 Only difference from benefit structure in the Main Retirement Plan is 
these plans provide for an earlier normal retirement date – age 55 or 
Rule of 85 for all employees.  Similar to the Main Retirement Plan, 
members of this plan hired prior to January 1, 2020 have a 2% multiplier.  
New hires employed on or after January 1, 2020 have a 1.75% multiplier 
when calculating their retirement benefits.   

 
   d.  Bureau of Criminal Investigation Plan  

 These are also a part of the NDPERS Public Safety Plan system but with a 
separate level of benefits.  The following is background information on the 
BCI Plan: 

 Public Employees Retirement Plan – BCI 
  Chapter 54-52, NDCC 
  Employer Contribution:   22.26% 
  Employee Contribution:     7.00% 
  Total Retirement Contributions:  29.26% 
 
  Vesting in Disability Benefit:  180 days 
  Vesting (new hires before 8/1/2023): 60 months 
  Vesting (new hires after 8/1/2023):  120 months 
  Normal Retirement: Age 55 or Rule of 85 
 
 

Retirement Formula: 
First 20 Years: Final Average Salary x 3% x First 20 Years of Credited Service 
Remaining Years: Final Average Salary x 1.75% x Remaining Years of Credited Service 

  
Example: 

$3000 x 3% x 20 = $1800.00 
$3000 x 1.75% x 5 = $  262.50 

$2062.50 
 
 
 2.  Highway Patrol 

 
The North Dakota Highway Patrol plan is administered by NDPERS as a 
separate plan of benefits.  The following is background information on the 
Highway Patrol system: 

 

November 2023 Board Book Page 85 of 126



  Chapter 39-03.1, NDCC 
  Employer Contribution:  21.20% of covered payroll 
  Employee Contribution:  14.80% of salary 
  Total Retirement Contribution: 36.00% 
 
  Vesting in Disability Benefit:  180 days 
  Vesting in Retirement Benefit:  120 months 
  Normal Retirement:   Age 55 or Rule of 80 

 
 
Retirement Formula: 
First 25 Years: Final Average Salary x 3.6% x First 25 Years of Credited Service 
Remaining Years: Final Average Salary x 1.75% x Remaining Years of Credited Service 

 
 

Example: 
$3000 x 3.6% x 25 = $2700.00 

$3000 x 1.75% x 5 = $  262.50 
$2962.50 

 
   
 3.  Job Service Retirement Plan 
  

The Job Service Retirement Plan was transferred to the Public Employees 
Retirement System to administer on August 1, 2003 and is a closed 
retirement plan.  The following information is from the systems last actuarial 
report performed by GRS Retirement Consulting: 

 
  

Employer Contribution: 0% of covered payroll 
Employee Contribution: 7% of salary 
Total Retirement Contribution: 7% 
  
Vesting in Disability Benefit: 5 years 
Vesting in Retirement Benefit 5 years 
Normal Retirement: Age 65 
 Age 62 with 5 years 
 Age 60 with 20 years 
 Age 55 with 30 years 

 
 

Retirement Formula: 
First 5 Years: Final Average Salary x 1.5% x First 25 Years of Credited Service 
Next Years: Final Average Salary x 1.75% x Next 5 Years of Credited Service 
Remaining Years: Final Average Salary x 2% x Remaining Years of Credited Service 

 

November 2023 Board Book Page 86 of 126



 B.  NDPERS Section 457 IRC Deferred Compensation Plan and Defined 
 Contribution Plan: 
 
 1. Deferred Compensation Plan  

  
 The administration of the Deferred Compensation Plan for public 

employees was given to the Retirement Board on July 1, 1987.  All state 
employees are eligible to participate, as well as political subdivision 
employees, if the governing authority of the political subdivision elects to 
have the state plan as their deferred compensation plan. 

 
 Presently 16,871 employees have accounts with fifteen investment 

providers.  Assets are approximately $375 million.  The Retirement Board 
has developed a plan and contracts with investment providers (mainly 
insurance companies) to invest the contributions of employees. 

 
 The Deferred Compensation Plan is found in Chapter 54-52.2 of the NDCC.   

 
 
 2. Defined Contribution Plan  

 
NDPERS 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan:  
Current NDPERS Employees  

 
The state approved the establishment of a defined contribution plan for 
certain state employees, effective January 1, 2000. This program is offered 
as an alternative to the State’s defined benefit plan. Eligible employees are 
not classified by Human Resource Management Services; however, this 
does not include employees of the University System or the Supreme 
Court.  
 
In 2013 the legislature changed the eligibility provision to allow all new state 
employees the option to elect out of the DB plan and join the DC plan within 
the first six months of employment. Eligibility has since reverted back to 
only non-classified employees on July 1, 2017.  
 
As of the date of this RFP release, approximately 114 employees are 
enrolled in the 401(a) Defined Contribution plan. The estimated value of 
monthly contributions to this plan is approximately $120,000. Total assets 
are approximately $18.6 million. Monthly contributions in the amount of 
15.12% of salary are added to the plan each month for each participant 
enrolled in the plan prior to 2020. For participants first enrolled after January 
1, 2020 through December 31, 2024, the monthly contributions total 16.26% 
of salary. Similar to the Companion Plan the “Statement of Investment 
Policy” and “Quarterly Report” are available on the NDPERS website  
 

November 2023 Board Book Page 87 of 126



under Defined Contribution Retirement Plan. TIAA is the present provider 
for these services. 
 
Effective on or before January 1, 2025, a new Defined Contribution 
Retirement Plan will be the only plan available for newly eligible employees. 
The new plan has an option to elect a contribution rate, which will be made 
to either the 401(a) plan or the 457 plan, depending on when the election is 
made. 

 
The defined contribution plan is found in Chapter 54-52.6 of the NDCC.  
 
https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/active-members/retirement-plans-active-members/defined-
contribution-active-members 
 
 
C.   NDPERS Retiree Health Insurance Credit Program: 
 
 The Retiree Health Insurance Credit program was implemented on July 1, 1989.  

This program provides for a partial payment of a retiree's medical insurance 
premium.  Eligible members are the NDPERS, Judges (including judges who 
retired under 27-17 NDCC), Air Guard, and Highway Patrol retirees who are 
participating in the Uniform Group Health Insurance program.  The plan is closed 
to new hires in the main and defined contribution plans after December 31, 2019.  
The Retiree Health Insurance Credit program is found in Chapter 54-52.1 of the 
NDCC.  The following is background information on the retiree health program: 

 
   
       Benefit Formula: 

$5.00 for each year of Credited Service 
Example: $5.00 x 25 = $125.00 

  
       Contribution: 

1.14% of payroll 
 
  
D.   Flex Program – Section 125 
 

The NDPERS administers the state’s 125 flex comp program.  This program offers 
employees the opportunity to pretax medical, dependent care, health savings 
account, and certain health care premiums.  As part of the RFP, we are seeking 
technical consulting services relating to the administration of this program to 
respond to questions relating to program compliance and day-to-day 
administration.  The requested services will be on an as-needed basis and 
reimbursed on an hourly basis.    

  

November 2023 Board Book Page 88 of 126

https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/active-members/retirement-plans-active-members/defined-contribution-active-members
https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/active-members/retirement-plans-active-members/defined-contribution-active-members


SECTION 3 - SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
This Section outlines the scope of services to be provided to NDPERS. 
 
A. Retirement Plans: 
 
 1. Actuarial Valuation 
   
  The consultant will be required to prepare a separate actuarial valuation for 

the various NDPERS systems (Main, Judges, and Public Safety plans), the 
Highway Patrol retirement program, and the Job Service Retirement Plan at 
the end of each fiscal year.  The retirement plans operate on a July 1 to 
June 30 fiscal year basis.  At a minimum, the actuarial valuation must 
include and be based on the following: 

 
  a.   The applicable provisions of NDCC. 
 
  b. The characteristics of covered active members, inactive non-retired 

participants, pensioners, and beneficiaries. 
 
  c. The assets of the respective system. 
 
  d. Economic actuarial assumptions regarding future salary increases 

and investment earnings as established by the Board. 
 
  e. Actuarial assumptions regarding employee termination, retirement, 

disability, death, etc., as established by the applicable Board. 
 
  f. The actuarial cost methodology to be used. 
 
  g. The effects of state legislation in effect since the last valuation. 
 
  h. The actuarial value of the investment is the market value less 

deferred appreciation (depreciation).  The methodology adopted by 
the Board shall be utilized. 

 
  i. A summary of investment results, including the effect of unrealized 

gains and losses for the last ten years, of the Fund.   
 
  j. The actuarially determined employer contribution rate for state 

employees, as required by NDCC section 54-52-06(1)(a) (effective 
January 1, 2025). 

 
  k. The report must include all items required by the Government 

Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for inclusion in the actuarial 
section and select schedules for the statistical section of the pension 

November 2023 Board Book Page 89 of 126



plan's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). 
  l.  The report must include the following reporting information and 

related disclosures for GASB 67:  Net Pension Liability, Target Asset 
Allocation, Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the 
discount rate, Schedule of changes in net pension liability,  

 
m. The report must include the following reporting information and 

related disclosures for GASB 74:  Net OPEN Liability, Target Asset 
Allocation, Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the 
discount rate, Schedule of changes in net OPEB liability 

   
  The actuarial valuations must be completed and submitted to NDPERS 

within thirty (30) days of receiving the census and financial data, but no later 
than October 10. As part of the valuation, data on the special prior service 
pensions for NDPERS is required.  This shall include the number, type, and 
monthly amount for this group as well as demographic information.  The 
consultant will present the report to the NDPERS Board. Therefore, the 
consultant should plan on attending one meeting each year for this 
presentation.  The consultant will also present the report to the Legislative 
Employee Benefits Committee and, therefore, should plan on attending one 
additional meeting each year. 

 
 
 2. GASB 67-68 and 74-75 Calculations 

 
The GASB 67 and 74 calculations and disclosures and GASB 68 and 75 
calculations for employers will be in a separate report.  In addition to the 
GASB 67 and 74 information mentioned in item 1(k) above, the report will 
include the following schedules and related disclosures for employers:  
Schedule of employer allocation percentage and Schedule of pension 
amounts by the employer.   

 
 
 3. Product Delivery 
   
  NDPERS will provide membership information to the selected firm for the 

retired and non-retired members.  Files are scheduled to be available no 
later than August 15 following the fiscal year ending June 30.  The firm must 
review the files within five working days of receipt and report in writing to 
NDPERS any discrepancies or errors discovered.   The preliminary financial 
information consisting of the "Statement of Plan Net Position" and the 
"Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position" is scheduled to be mailed to 
the firm no later than September 10 following the fiscal year ending  

  June 30. 
 
   

November 2023 Board Book Page 90 of 126



  All reports (annual valuations and legislative bill reports) are to be delivered 
to NDPERS no later than October 15.  GASB valuations must be completed 
by December 20. Delivery after that date shall result in a ten percent (10%) 
reduction in the fixed fee.  The 10% applies for each year to the total fee.  
Consequently, if the date was missed for two years the total reduction 
would be 20%.  The Board retains the right to waive the penalty if 
warranted.  In addition, if the time schedule is not met in the first two years 
of the contract the Board may consider not renewing for the additional two-
year period. 

 
  The selected firm is required to present the annual actuarial report to the 

NDPERS Board at their October meeting. 
 
 
 4. Gain/Loss Experience Analysis 
   
  An actuarial gain/loss experience analysis shall be performed each year 

and included in the actuarial report for NDPERS main system.  The analysis 
shall reconcile the difference in the employer contribution requirements from 
the previous year to the present year.  Variables to be included are any plan 
design changes, assumption changes, contributions, investment return, 
salary assumption, retirement experience, withdrawal experience, disability 
experience, mortality experience, administrative expenses, and other 
factors as determined by NDPERS. 

 
 
 5. Consulting Services 
   
  The consultant will be expected to serve on an ongoing basis in an advisory 

and review capacity to the NDPERS Board, the Executive Director of 
NDPERS, and the NDPERS staff.  In this capacity, the consultant will be 
expected to attend meetings and present findings and recommendations as 
required. The NDPERS Board meets on a monthly basis.  NDPERS uses 
video or audio conferencing for these meetings if available to avoid the 
need for travel. 

 
  The consultant must provide the following: 
 
  a. The actuarial and administrative implications of particular 

interpretations of the statutes and administrative rules governing 
NDPERS and its retirement plans.    

 
  b. The effect of existing and proposed state and federal laws that affect, 

or may affect NDPERS. 
 
  c. General assistance to NDPERS, as requested, regarding the 

November 2023 Board Book Page 91 of 126



ongoing administration of NDPERS including the calculation of 
benefits, the development of procedures and forms, and computer 
systems. 

 
  d. Technical advice on state and federal tax issues facing NDPERS 

and its members. 
 
  e. Provide advice on service purchase provisions, methods, and tables 

as necessary. 
 
  f. General assistance in developing rules and policies. 
 
  g. General actuarial and administrative implications of a particular 

interpretation of retirement statutes or rules. 
 
  h. The consultant shall be available for periodic educational discussions 

with the NDPERS Board and/or staff members. 
 
  i. Give consultation and advisory services in the policy and 

administrative problems of implementing new legislation. 
 
 
 6. Federal Compliance 
   
  The consultant will be expected to serve, on an ongoing basis, in an advisory 

and review capacity to the NDPERS Board, the Executive Director, and 
NDPERS staff relating to major changes in the federal laws and regulations 
governing defined benefit plans that have occurred in recent years.  
Therefore, the consultant must be able to provide assistance in the following 
areas: 
a. Minimum participation rules.  

 
b. Participation of leased employees. 

 
c. Modified IRC Section 415 limits. 

 
d. Maximum compensation levels for benefit accruals. 

 
e. Minimum distribution requirements 

. 
f. Additional income tax on early withdrawals. 
 
g. Other federal initiatives and potential initiatives. 

 
  Not included, in the above scope of work, are plan amendments, filings with 

the IRS, or performance testing.    

November 2023 Board Book Page 92 of 126



 7. Proposed Legislation 
   
  The consultant will be required to assist in the following areas relating to 

proposed legislation on a fee-for-service basis.  Prior to initiating any efforts 
in this area, authorization must be given by the Executive Director of 
NDPERS.  Any work efforts the consultant completes or initiates that are not 
authorized will not be reimbursed.  The efforts under this task area include: 

 
    a. Give consultation on, and perform certain work in, pricing proposed 

legislation. 
 
    b. Assist in the preparation and review of proposed changes to the 

governing laws. 
 
    c. Pricing or general review work on legislation shall specifically 

address each issue and give the basis for each finding.  The 
consultant shall furnish its review in writing and, for pricing efforts, 
show the assumptions, pricing base, actuarial implications on the 
total program, cost, and alternatives, if appropriate. 

 
    d. Generally the consultant will be given several weeks to do the 

necessary pricing, however, during the Legislative Session it may be 
necessary to complete certain tasks on an overnight basis. What is 
your ability to provide such services? 

 
    e. Provide analysis of the applicability of IRS or other federal 

requirements, as well as, identifying any general retirement plan 
design issues. 

 
    f. Expert testimony, when requested, to the North Dakota Legislative 

Assembly or any other body relative to NDPERS in general and, in 
particular, with regard to the retirement systems or benefit 
modifications. 

 
    g. Appear at selected meetings and hearings for discussion of actuarial 

standards and/or the principles used in the determination of the 
funding requirement and in the pricing of legislation. 

 
 
 8.  Experience Study 

 
NDPERS will be doing an experience review of the NDPERS and Highway 
Patrol retirement plans in 2025.  The first part is to conduct an experience 
study on the defined benefit plans administered by NDPERS and the 
Retiree Health Credit program.  NDPERS administers two primary 
retirement trust funds.  One is the North Dakota Public Employees 

November 2023 Board Book Page 93 of 126



Retirement System (NDPERS) and the other is the Highway Patrol plan.  
The NDPERS plan has seven subdivisions/plans which are: Main, Judges, 
Public Safety with prior service, Public Safety without prior service, Bureau 
of Criminal Investigations, State Public Safety, and National Guard.   

 
 
B.  Deferred Compensation and Defined Contribution Plan: 
 
 1. Consulting Services 
   
  The consultant will be expected to serve, on an ongoing basis, in an 

advisory and review capacity to the NDPERS Board, Executive Director, 
and the NDPERS staff.  

 
   The consultant must provide the following: 
 
  a. The effect of existing and proposed state and federal laws or 

regulations that affect, or may affect, the deferred compensation 
program or defined contribution plan. 

 
  b. Advice on proposed program changes. 
 
  c. Technical advice on state and federal tax issues facing the deferred 

compensation program or defined contribution plan. 
 
  d. Technical advice concerning administrative issues (i.e., hardship 

applications, distributions, catch-up provision, etc.). 
 
  e. Technical advice concerning day-to-day compliance issues. 
   
  f. General assistance in developing rules, policies, and plan document 

changes. 
 
  g.  General technical advice concerning investments. 
 

2. Fees 
The above services will be on a fee-for-service basis (flat rate fee).  The 
consultant shall identify the individual assigned to this effort and their 
experience. 
 
 

C. Retiree Health Insurance Credit Program: 
  
 1. Actuarial Services 
   
  The consultant will be required to prepare an annual actuarial valuation of 

November 2023 Board Book Page 94 of 126



the Retiree Health Insurance Credit program.  The Retiree Health Insurance 
Credit program (effective July 1, 1989) currently operates on a fiscal year 
basis July 1 - June 30.  At a minimum, the actuarial valuation must include 
and be based on the following: 

 
  a. The applicable provisions of the NDCC. 
 
  b. The characteristics of covered participants and eligible non-covered 

pensioners. 
 
  c. The actuarial value of assets of the Retiree Health Insurance Credit 

program is the market value less deferred appreciation 
(depreciation).  The methodologies adopted by the Board should be 
used. 

 
  d. Economic actuarial assumption regarding future investment earnings 

and future salary increases as established by the Board. 
 
  e. Actuarial assumptions regarding employee terminations, retirement, 

disability, death, etc., as established by the Board. 
 
  f. A gain/loss experience analysis. 
 
  g. Conclusions and recommendations. 
 
  h. The report must include all items required by the Government 

Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for inclusion in the actuarial 
section and select schedules for the statistical section of the pension 
plan's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). 

 
 
 2.  Consulting Services 
   
  The consultant will be expected to serve on an ongoing basis, in an 

advisory and review capacity, to the NDPERS Board, Executive Director, 
and the NDPERS staff relating to the Retiree Health Credit program.  In this 
capacity, the consultant will be expected to attend meetings to present 
findings and recommendations as required.  NDPERS Board meetings are 
generally held one time per month unless additional special meetings are 
needed. 

 
  The consultant must provide the following: 
 
  a. The effect of existing and proposed state and federal laws that affect, 

or may affect, the Retiree Health Insurance Credit program.  
 

November 2023 Board Book Page 95 of 126



  b. General assistance to NDPERS, as requested, regarding the 
ongoing administration of the Retiree Health Insurance Credit 
program. 

 
  c. General actuarial and administrative implications of particular 

interpretations of the Retiree Health Insurance Credit program 
statutes and administrative rules. 

 
  d. General assistance in developing rules and policies. 
   
 
 3. Proposed Legislation 
   
  The consultant will be required to assist in the following areas relating to 

proposed legislation on a fee-for-service basis concerning the Retiree 
Health Insurance Credit program.  Prior to beginning any efforts under this 
area authorization must be given by the NDPERS Executive Director.  Any 
work efforts the consultant completes or initiates that are not authorized will 
not be reimbursed.  The consultant should anticipate that one of the two on-
site meetings under the fixed-fee contract will concern proposed legislation 
and, therefore, not be eligible for billing under this section.  The efforts 
under this task area include: 

 
  a. Give consultation on, and perform certain work in, pricing proposed 

legislation. 
 
  b. Assist in the preparation and review of proposed changes to the 

governing laws. 
 
  c. Pricing or general review work on legislation shall specifically 

address each issue and give the basis for each finding.  The 
consultant shall furnish its review in writing and, for pricing efforts, 
show the assumptions, pricing base, actuarial implications on total 
program, cost, and alternatives, if appropriate. 

 
  d. Generally the consultant will be given several weeks to do the 

necessary pricing; however, during the Legislative Session, it may be 
necessary to complete certain tasks on an overnight basis. What is 
your ability to provide such services? 

 
  e. Expert testimony, upon request, to the North Dakota Legislative 

Assembly, or any other body, concerning the Retiree Health 
Insurance Credit program in general and in particular, with regard to 
proposed modifications. 

 
  

November 2023 Board Book Page 96 of 126



 
 4. Experience Study 

 
NDPERS will be doing an experience review of the NDPERS and Highway 
Patrol retirement plans in 2025.  The first part is to conduct an experience 
study on the defined benefit plans administered by NDPERS and the 
Retiree Health Insurance Credit program.  NDPERS administers two 
primary retirement trust funds.  One is the North Dakota Public Employees 
Retirement System (NDPERS) and the other is the Highway Patrol plan.  
The NDPERS plan has seven subdivisions/plans which are: Main, Judges, 
Public Safety with prior service, Public Safety without prior service, State 
Public Safety, Bureau of Criminal Investigations, and National Guard.   

 
 
D.  Update of Actuarial Tables 
 
 After completion of the  experience study NDPERS is requesting an update to its 
actuarial tables.  Specifically, the tables to be updated would be for the NDPERS 
retirement plan and the Highway Patrol retirement plan in the NDPERS business system 
format (included in the link to Attachment A - Template and Attachment B - Example of 
Existing Factors ).  These tables include: 

 
1. Main & Public Safety –Normal Form 

a. Converting Life Annuity to 50% Joint & Survivor 
b. Converting Life Annuity to 100% Joint & Survivor 
c. Converting Life Annuity to 10-Year Term Certain 
d. Converting Life Annuity of 20-Year Term Certain 

2. Main & Public Safety – Disability  
a. Converting Life Annuity to 50% Joint & Survivor 
b. Converting Life Annuity to 100% Joint & Survivor 
c. Converting Life Annuity to 10-Year Term Certain 
d. Converting Life Annuity of 20-Year Term Certain 

3. Judges & Highway Patrol 
a. Converting 50% Joint & Survivor to 100% Joint & Survivor 
b. Converting Life Annuity to 10-Year Term Certain (same table as 

 Main) 
c. Converting Life Annuity of 20-Year Term Certain (same table as 

 Main) 
4. Judges & Highway Patrol – Disability 

a. Converting 50% Joint & Survivor to 100% Joint & Survivor 
b. Converting Life Annuity to 10-Year Term Certain (same table as 

 Main) 
c. Converting Life Annuity of 20-Year Term Certain  (same table as 

 Main) 
5. Service Purchase 

a. Main System – State Employees 

November 2023 Board Book Page 97 of 126

https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/sites/www/files/documents/about/rfp-bid-opportunities/rfp-uniform-group-insurance-attachmenta-a-template.xlsx
https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/sites/www/files/documents/about/rfp-bid-opportunities/rfp-uniform-group-insurance-attachment-b-example-existing-factors.xlsx
https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/sites/www/files/documents/about/rfp-bid-opportunities/rfp-uniform-group-insurance-attachment-b-example-existing-factors.xlsx


b. Main System – Non-state Employees 
c. Public Safety Systems 
d. Judges  
e. Highway Patrol 
f. Main & Public Safety RHIC 
g. Judges & Highway Patrol RHIC 

6. Present Value of Employee Contribution Tables 
a. Main System – State Employees 
b. Main System – Non-state Employees 
c. Public Safety Systems 
d. Judges  
e. Highway Patrol 

7. Partial Lump Sum Option Factors for Main & Public Safety 
8. Partial Lump Sum Option Factors for Judges & Highway Patrol 
9. Deferred Normal Retirement Option for Main & Public Safety 
10. Deferred Normal Retirement Option for Judges & Highway Patrol 
11. Graduated Benefit Single Life 1% & 2% 
12. Graduated Benefit 50% Joint & Survivor 1% & 2% – Main & Law 

 Enforcement 
13. Graduated Benefit 100% Joint & Survivor 1% & 2% – Main & Law 

 Enforcement 
14. Graduated Benefit 50% (Normal) Joint & Survivor 1% & 2% – Judges & 

 Highway Patrol 
15. Graduated Benefit 100% Joint & Survivor 1% & 2% – Judges & Highway 

 Patrol 
16. Graduated Benefit 20-Year Term Certain 1% & 2% 
17. Graduated Benefit 10-Year Term Certain 1% & 2% 
18. Retirement Benefit Repayment – All Plans 

a. Male Member with Life Annuity 
b. Female Member with Life Annuity 
c. Male  Member with 100% Joint & Survivor 
d. Female Member with 100% Joint & Survivor 
e. Male Member with 50% Joint & Survivor 
f. Female Member with 50% Joint & Survivor 

 
  

November 2023 Board Book Page 98 of 126



SECTION 4 - INFORMATION REQUESTS 
 
The proposal must contain in a separate section your organization's response to the 
following requested information.  Respond by restating the request with the response 
following.  This format shall be used in the proposal. 
 
A. General Background: 
 1. The firm's name, home office address, address of the office providing the 

services under the contract, and telephone number. 
 
 2. General description of the firm, including the size, number of employees, 

primary business (consulting, pension planning, insurance, etc.), other 
business or services, type of organization (franchise, corporation, 
partnership, etc.), and other descriptive material. 

 
 3. Provide summary information regarding the professional and experience 

qualifications of actuaries and other consultants who shall perform work 
under the contract. 

 
 4. Description of the IT equipment and a statement as to the ownership and 

location of this equipment to be utilized in the performance of the contract.  
Describe your data security policies and procedures.   

 
 5. Statement of the availability and location of staff (including actuaries) and 

other required resources for performing all services and providing 
deliverables within indicated time frames.  Statement as to whether or not 
the services outlined in these specifications can be performed using only 
your present staff. 

 
 6. Provide a timeline sequence of activities indicating your understanding of 

the RFP and what resources will be applied at given sequences. 
 
 7. Provide your understanding of the services requested. 
 
 8. Identify the specific and unique qualifications of your firm with regard to 

providing the requested work. 
 
 9. Identify the offices from which services to the Fund will be provided. 
 
 10. Describe your organization's approach to actuarial consulting. 
 
 11.   Discuss how your firm will assure that all information provided to you will be 

confidential and how you secure our information within the organization and 
from access from outside your organization.   

 
 

November 2023 Board Book Page 99 of 126



B. General Services: 
 1. Retirement 
 

a. Discuss your understanding of the work effort requested in 3, A, 1 
and how you would meet the requested work effort. 
 

b. Discuss your understanding of the work effort requested in 3, A, 2 
and how you would meet the requested work effort.   

 
c. Indicate your ability to meet the requirements of 3, A, 3 and how you 

would meet the requested work effort.  Discuss your understanding 
of the penalty provision for late delivery of products and whether you 
agree to abide by this provision. 

 
d. Discuss your understanding of the 3, A, 4. 

 
e. Discuss your understanding of 3, A, 5 and the types of general 

consulting you could provide. 
 

f. Discuss your expertise and resources for providing the services 
requested in 3, A, 6. 

 
g. Discuss your understanding of the work requested in 3, A, 7 and 

your experience working with legislative committees.  Describe your 
organization's experience and availability regarding legislative 
hearings and testimony.  Also, specifically discuss the experience of 
the staff assigned.  In addition, highlight your firm's ability to perform 
pricing analysis of proposed legislation. 
 

h. Describe your organization's approach to actuarial consulting for 
retirement plans. 

 
  i. Include a copy of an actuarial report.   Discuss your ability to alter 

your format and data displays to respond to NDPERS requests.  
 
  j. Discuss your work experience with public sector retirement boards. 
 
  k. Provide a listing of state public sector clients of similar nature and 

size for whom your organization provides defined benefit retirement 
plan consulting and actuarial services.  References should identify 
the appropriate contact person(s), addresses, and telephone 
numbers. 

 
  l. Does your firm publish a periodic newsletter?  If yes, how often? 
 
 

November 2023 Board Book Page 100 of 126



  m. To what extent does your organization provide timely information 
and insight into current/pending federal legislation? 

   
  n. Discuss your experience with DB/DC plan discussion and studies. 
 
  o. Identify and provide a resume for each actuary that will be assigned 

to the project and the estimated number of hours they will work on 
the project. 

 
  p. Provide a resume for each non-actuary professional assigned to this 

work effort and the number of hours they are assigned. 
 
  q. Identify any subcontractors to be used. 
 
 
 2. Deferred Compensation and Defined Contribution  
 
  a. Discuss your understanding of the work effort in 3, B, 1 and how you 

would meet the requested effort.  Describe your organization's 
approach to consulting for public employee deferred compensation 
programs. 

 
  b. Provide a listing of public sector clients of similar size for whom your 

firm provided deferred compensation consulting services.  
References should identify the appropriate contact person(s), 
addresses, and telephone numbers. 

 
  c. Indicate your organization's depth of experience in each of the 

following areas: 
 
     1) Preparation of plan document. 
     2) Preparation of member booklets. 
     3) Investment provider contract negotiation. 
     4) Financial analysis and reporting. 
     5) Preparation of contracts, bid specifications, and RFPs for 

deferred compensation programs that require providers to bid 
for the opportunity to provide services to employees. 

     6) Plan qualification. 
     7) 457 compliance issues. 
 
  d. Provide a list of and resume for each individual assigned to this work 

effort. 
 
 
 
 

November 2023 Board Book Page 101 of 126



 3. Retiree Health Insurance Credit Program: 
 
  a. Describe your organization's understanding and approach to the 

work effort requested in 3, C, 1.   
 
  b. Describe your organizations understanding and approach to the 

work effort requested in 3, C, 2.  
 
  c.     Describe your organizations understanding and approach to the 

work effort requested in 3, C, 3.  
 
  d. Provide a listing of public sector clients for whom your organization 

provides, or has provided, Retiree Health Insurance Credit program 
consulting and actuarial services.  (Indicate the date of the study and 
the date of implementation).  References should identify the 
appropriate contact person(s), addresses, and telephone numbers. 

 
  e. Provide the curriculum vitae of key personnel in your firm who will be 

providing the service and the estimated hours each is proposed to 
be utilizing in this project. 

 
f.      Provide a statement of the firm's ability to perform pricing analysis of 

proposed legislation complete with an actuarial certificate showing 
assumptions, pricing base, and actuarial implications on the total 
program. 

 
  
 4. Update of Actuarial Tables 
 

Discuss your understanding of the work effort requested in 3, D.  In addition 
discuss: 
 
A. Your experience in preparing the table requested. 
B. Your suggestions on integrating these into the system. 
C. How you verify for accuracy  the numbers supplied to ensure their 

integrity and consistency. 
  
 
C. Signed Offer (Agreements) from Section 10. 
 
 
D. Other Information: 
 In this section you may supply any other information about your firm, approach to 

the work effort, staff, etc., that you feel appropriate.  

November 2023 Board Book Page 102 of 126



SECTION 5 – COST PROPOSAL (FEES/HOURS) 
 
We are requesting that you price this project on a fixed-fee basis for certain efforts and on 
a fee-for-service basis for other efforts as identified below.   
 
THE COST PROPOSAL SHALL BE UNDER SEPARATE COVER AND NOT PART OF 
THE RESPONSES TO THE OTHER INFORMATION REQUESTS.  PLEASE PROVIDE 
AN ELECTRONIC COPY OF THE COST PROPOSAL.  
 
Expenses for travel, lodging, meals, and other travel related out-of-pocket will be 
reimbursed on an incurred basis if the Executive Director of NDPERS has given prior 
approval for NDPERS-related efforts. NDPERS is under no obligation to reimburse the 
consultant if no approval was given. 
 
FIXED FEE: 
 
Retirement:  
 Fixed Fee      2024: $_______________ 
 
 (This fixed fee is subject to the 10% reduction) 2025: $_______________ 
 
Retiree Health Insurance Credit:  
 Fixed Fee      2024: $_______________ 
 
        2025: $_______________ 
 
Experience Study       2024: $_______________ 
 
        2025: $_______________ 
 
Update of Actuarial Factors with Heat Map:   2024: $_______________ 
 Fixed Fee   
        2025: $_______________ 
 
 
GASB 67-68 and 74-75 Work: 
  
 Fixed Fee      2024: $_______________ 
 
        2025: $_______________ 
 
 
  

November 2023 Board Book Page 103 of 126



FEE FOR SERVICE: 
 
NDPERS is requesting a flat rate fee per hour for work efforts relating to general 
consulting, Legislative Work, and Defined Contribution/Deferred Comp consulting.    
 
 
 
Retirement and Retiree Health General Consulting:    
         2024: $_______________ 
 
         2025: $_______________ 
 
Legislative Work:       
         2024: $_______________ 
 
         2025: $_______________ 
 
 
Defined Contribution/Deferred Compensation Consulting:  
         2024: $_______________ 
 
         2025: $_______________ 
 
  

November 2023 Board Book Page 104 of 126



SECTION 6  -  SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL 
 
Proposals should be prepared in a straightforward manner to satisfy the requirements of 
this RFP.  Emphasis should be on completeness and clarity of content.  Costs for  
developing proposals are entirely the responsibility of the proposer and shall not be  
chargeable to NDPERS. 
 
 
 1.  Inquiries Regarding Specifications 
 

Offeror will have until 5:00 p.m. (CDT) on January 12, 2024, to submit 
questions in writing regarding this RFP. All questions shall cite the specific RFP 
section and paragraph number(s) to which the question refers. Any questions 
received by NDPERS prior to the date and time above will be answered in a 
question-and-answer document issued by NDPERS. Only answers provided in 
writing by NDPERS will be considered official.  
All query submissions must include the identity of the sender, the sender's 
title, firm name, mailing address, telephone number, and e-mail address. 

 
Questions must be submitted by email to ndpersbids@nd.gov. NDPERS is not 
responsible for questions received after the submittal deadline. 

 
Answers to questions will be made available on the NDPERS website at 
https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/about/bid-opportunities by January 31, 2024, at  
5:00 p.m. C.D.T. 

 
Only information in the materials constituting this RFP, including its 
attachments, exhibits, and forms, the question and answer document, and any 
RFP addendum shall be binding on NDPERS. 

 
All inquiries regarding these specifications must be in writing and submitted by 
email to ndpersbids@nd.gov.  

 
 
 2.  Rules and Regulations 

 
Any Offeror submitting a proposal must be able to meet and comply with all 
applicable state and federal statutes and regulations. 
 
 

3.  Confidentiality of Trade Secret, Proprietary, Commercial, and Financial 
Information (NDCC Section 44-04-18.4(6)) 

 
All materials submitted in response to this RFP will become the property of 
NDPERS and upon receipt by NDPERS are subject to the North Dakota public 
records law.  

November 2023 Board Book Page 105 of 126

https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/about/bid-opportunities
mailto:ndpersbids@nd.gov


 
PLEASE NOTE that proposals should follow the Confidential/Proprietary 
Information instructions in Section 8. Any provisions of the Responder’s 
proposal that are desired to be confidential must be identified specifically on 
each page of the proposal and included in the table provided in Section 8.  

 
 
 4.   Addenda, Amendments, and Clarifications to the RFP 

 
NDPERS may issue any addenda, amendments, and clarifications regarding 
this RFP that NDPERS determines are necessary. All such addenda, 
amendments, and clarifications issued by NDPERS become part of the RFP. 
All addenda, amendments, and clarifications to the RFP will be issued in writing 
and added to the posting at: https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/about/bid-opportunities. 
It shall be the responsibility of the Offeror to recheck the RFP posting at: 
https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/about/bid-opportunities for any possible addenda 
prior to submitting a proposal. The Offeror must acknowledge all addenda, 
amendments, or clarifications by either signing and returning such document(s) 
or indicating receipt on the Signature Page of the proposal. Only written 
addenda, amendments, and clarifications signed or sent by authorized 
NDPERS personnel shall be binding. All oral and other interpretations or 
clarifications have no legal effect. 

 
 
 5.   Order of Responses 

 
Responses must be made in the same order as provided in the specifications.  
Unless a variation from the specifications of the RFP is specifically noted in a 
response, the Offeror is agreeing to meet all requirements, including the 
required contract provisions, stated in this RFP (See Section 10). No proposed 
variation is binding on NDPERS unless and until accepted by NDPERS. 
 
 

 6.  Submission of Proposals 
 
To be considered for award, six (6) printed and bound copies, one (1) unbound 
copy of the Offeror’s technical and price proposal, one (1) electronic, PDF 
redacted copy of the proposal on a separate USB flash drive labeled 
“REDACTED”, and one (1) electronic, editable, PDF original copy of the proposal 
on a separate USB flash drive labeled “ORIGINAL” (note that the electronic 
redacted and original copies may not be a picture) must be received by NDPERS 
on or before 5:00 P.M. (CDT), February 14, 2024. The Request for Redaction 
chart in Section 8 MUST be completed and submitted with the proposal. The 
unbound copy shall bear original signatures and shall be marked as the "Master 
Copy". The unbound Master Copy shall contain no divider sheets or tabs, and 
shall be printed on one side only of 8-1/2 in. x 11 in. white paper to enable 
copying if needed. Colors must reproduce in a legible manner on a black-and-
white copier. The unbound original, one (1) copy of the “REDACTED” proposal 

November 2023 Board Book Page 106 of 126

https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/about/bid-opportunities
https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/about/bid-opportunities


on a USB flash drive, and one (1) copy of the “ORIGINAL” proposal on a USB 
flash drive shall be provided in separate sealed envelopes.  

 
Responder acknowledges that NDPERS is subject to the North Dakota Open 
Records Laws, and the documents submitted pursuant to this RFP may be 
subject to an open records request. Responder is also put on notice that, except 
for the information that is determined by NDPERS to be confidential or otherwise 
exempt from the North Dakota Open Records law, NDPERS must disclose to the 
public upon request any records it receives from Responder. If NDPERS 
receives a request for information that Responder has requested be kept 
confidential, NDPERS will review the information submitted by Responder and 
may also contact Responder for additional input regarding the nature of those 
records, but NDPERS will be solely responsible for making the ultimate 
determination of whether the materials submitted are open or exempt. All 
information that has not been clearly identified by Responder as being 
confidential and which NDPERS has determined constitutes confidential or 
exempt information under the North Dakota open records law will be disclosed 
as an open record. If, as a result of the position taken by Respondent regarding 
the confidentiality of the information, NDPERS is assessed any damages or fees, 
Respondent shall indemnify NDPERS for such damages or fees. If no 
documents or materials are identified and marked by Respondent as 
confidential, Respondent will be deemed to have consented to the release of the 
document or material and to have waived any cause of action against NDPERS 
resulting from the release of the documents or materials. NDPERS will not 
consider the prices submitted by the Responder to be confidential. 

 
        Copies of the proposal shall be delivered to: 

 
 

 The base contract will be for a two-year period of July 1, 2024, through June 
30, 2026. All rates and fees must be firm, fixed and valid for the duration of 
the base period. Additionally, NDPERS is seeking two, two-year option 
periods for a potential total contract period of six years.    

 Proposals and any other information submitted by organizations in response 
to this RFP shall become the property of NDPERS and will not be returned. 

 NDPERS will not provide compensation to Offerors for any expenses that they 
incur as part of the proposal process, including but not limited to expenses 
incurred for preparing proposals, making demonstrations, responding to  

 

Katheryne Korom, Research & Project Manager 
NDPERS 

1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 
PO Box 1657 

Bismarck, ND 58502-1657 
 

November 2023 Board Book Page 107 of 126



  inquiries, and attending meetings and negotiations. Offerors submit proposals 
at their own risk and expense. 

• The materials submitted must be enclosed in a sealed envelope, box, or 
container; the outside of the package must show clearly the submittal 
deadline, the organization name, and the return address of the organization. 
The package the proposal is delivered in must also be plainly marked 
“PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE RETIREMENT PLAN SERVICES”.   

 A proposal shall be considered late if received at any time after the exact time 
specified for the return of proposals. Late proposals may be returned to the 
organization unopened at the organization’s expense. Late proposals will not 
be considered unless the NDPERS Board determines otherwise. 

• Proposals submitted via email or fax will not be accepted. 

• Any award is contingent upon a contract acceptable to NDPERS being 
executed. 

 
 

  7.  Conflicts of Interest List 
        

Bidders must provide a list of all entities with which it has relationships that 
create, or appear to create, a conflict of interest with the work that is 
contemplated in this request for proposals. The Conflicts of Interest List in 
Section 9 MUST be completed and submitted with the proposal. This list should 
indicate the name of the entity, the relationship, and a discussion on the conflict.  

 
 
 8.  Acceptance of Proposals 

 
NDPERS retains the right to reject all proposals submitted. NDPERS is not 
required to select the proposal with the lowest fees but will take into 
consideration statutory guidelines and any factors it considers relevant.  It is the 
intent of NDPERS at this time to enter into a contract effective upon execution 
with services beginning July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2026. The Board at its 
discretion may extend the contract for up to two additional two-year periods. 
The premium and benefits structure of these extensions will be subject to 
negotiations prior to renewal. NDPERS has the right to discontinue the program 
if the legislature discontinues the program or for any other reason. The Offeror 
whose proposal is selected will be chosen with the goal of developing a long-
term relationship. 

 
 

 9.   Non-Responsive Proposals 
 
NDPERS is not required to accept for consideration any proposal that does not 
comply with the criteria set forth herein. 

 
 
 

November 2023 Board Book Page 108 of 126



 
10.  References 

 
Each Offeror must provide at least 3 references from other public fund clients 
of similar size or larger. NDPERS or its designated representative may ask 
these clients to provide information regarding the Offeror’s overall record of 
service in providing services for their participants. Providing references in its 
proposal constitutes the Offeror’s permission for NDPERS to contact these 
clients. 

 
 
11.  Waiver 

 
By submitting a proposal, the Offeror submitting the proposal agrees to waive 
any claim it has or may have against NDPERS, NDPERS employees, NDPERS 
agents, and NDPERS attorneys, arising out of or in connection with (1) the 
administration, evaluation, or recommendation of any proposal; (2) waiver of 
any requirement under this RFP; (3) acceptance or rejection of any proposal; 
and (4) award of the contract. 

 
 
12.  Additional Information from Responding Organizations 

 
NDPERS reserves the right to request additional documentation from 
responding organizations, and such information may vary by Offeror. 

 
 
13. Interview with Responding Organizations 

 
 The NDPERS Board may request representatives of your organization to appear 

for interviewing purposes.  Travel expenses and costs related to the interview will 
be the responsibility of the bidder. 

 
 

14.  Modification 
 
No proposal may be changed after the deadline for submissions of 
proposals unless language within the proposal is needing clarification at 
NDPERS’s request. 

 
 
15.  Solicitation 

 
The selected Offeror shall not use lists of covered employees and other data for 
any purpose except to provide services to participants. Neither the selected 
Offeror nor its employees may disclose such information to any other party 
unless specifically authorized in writing in advance by NDPERS. 

 
 

November 2023 Board Book Page 109 of 126



 
 

16.  News Release 
 
Written approval by NDPERS will be required for any news releases 
or other communications regarding a contract awarded to an 
Offeror. 

 
 

17.  Change Required by Statute, Regulations, Court Orders, or Program 
Appropriations 
 
NDPERS recognizes that there are factors that could cause a change of 
condition with regard to NDPERS benefits and administration that are beyond 
the control of NDPERS or the Offeror submitting a proposal. Those factors that 
may affect the program include, but are not limited to: 

• Federal and state statutes, regulations, court decisions, and 
administrative rulings. 

• Funding appropriated by the North Dakota Legislature 
• Opinions of the Attorney General of the State of North Dakota 

 
NDPERS expects a good faith effort on the part of the Offeror that is selected to 
comply with additional responsibilities imposed by federal or state law without 
requiring mid-year fee increases. NDPERS reserves the right to negotiate with 
the Offeror as needed to comply with any changes required by statute, 
regulation, court order, administrative order, or official interpretation. 

 
 
18.  Contract Award 

 
 The policy of the NDPERS Board is to solicit proposals with a bona fide intention to 

award a contract.  This policy will not affect the right of the NDPERS Board to reject 
any, or all, proposals. 

 
In evaluating the proposals, price will not be the sole factor.  The Board may  
consider any factors it deems necessary and proper, including but not limited to:  
price; quality of service; response to this request; experience; staffing; and, general 
reputation. 

 
 The failure to meet all procurement policy requirements shall not automatically 

invalidate a proposal or procurement. The final decision rests with the Board. 
 

 
19.  Agreements 

 
 Section 10 – Offer (Agreements), must be signed by a partner or principal of the 

firm and included with your proposal.  
  

November 2023 Board Book Page 110 of 126



SECTION 7  -  REVIEW PROCESS 
 
Proposals will be evaluated in a three-step approach. The first step will be done by a 
review team composed of NDPERS staff.  The first step will be an initial screening of 
each proposal to determine if it is sufficiently responsive to the RFP to permit a valid 
comparison.  The qualifying factor will be on a Yes/No basis.  The proposal will be 
dropped from consideration if a majority of viewers respond "No". 
 
The proposals that pass the initial screening will then be reviewed by the same review 
team.  Each individual will review the proposal for all areas but price.  Every proposal will 
be awarded points for specified areas by the reviewers.  Points for price are awarded 
automatically.  Following is the weighting factor for each area: 
 
   
GENERAL       POINTS 
 
Did Consultant follow required format in Section 4? 6 points 
     
RETIREMENT 
 
Technical Understanding     44 points 
Product Delivery       10 points 
Qualifications and Staffing     10 points 
Price        30 points 
   
 
 
The purpose of this review is to assess the consultant's understanding of the work 
requirements, capabilities, and resources.  It is important that your proposals relate to 
your understanding in order to be rated.  A statement that you will comply with the RFP is 
not sufficient, nor is repeating the RFP requirements.  The findings will be reported to the 
NDPERS Board.  This will be the third step of the review.  The Board at its discretion may 
require vendor interviews.  The Board retains the option to make the final selection based 
upon not only the above review but all other factors it deems applicable to deciding what 
firm should be awarded the contract.  
  

November 2023 Board Book Page 111 of 126



SECTION 8  -  CONFIDENTIAL/PROPORIETARY INFORMATION 
Request for Redaction Chart 

 
The Responder submitting a proposal to the attached RFP is required to complete the 
following.  
 
Any provisions of the company’s proposal that are desired to be confidential must be identified 
specifically on each page of the proposal and in a table format as provided below.  
 
Information not identified in the table will be considered an open record by NDPERS, regardless 
of whether the information is marked confidential in the body of the proposal. 
 
In response to the Request for Proposals entitled Retirement Plan Services (please check one): 

____ Offeror asserts that the information noted in the table below constitutes 
proprietary, trade secret, commercial, or financial information as defined by North 
Dakota Century Code section 44-04-18.4, and desires that the information noted 
in the table below not be disclosed if requested pursuant to the North Dakota 
Open Records law. Offeror has submitted a redacted copy of the proposal 
on a USB flash drive labeled “REDACTED” that accurately and completely 
redacts the information noted in the table below. 

____ Offeror makes NO assertion that any information in its Proposal, in whole or in 
part, should be protected from disclosure under the North Dakota Open Records 
law. 

Technical Proposal: 
Specific wording 
that Responder 
desires to 
protect 

Page Number, 
Section 
Number 

Specific reason 
Responder 
believes the 
language should 
not be disclosed 

North Dakota Century 
Code provision that 
allows NDPERS to 
withhold the 
information if 
requested 

Has this 
information 
ever been 
publicly 
disclosed? 
(Yes/No) 

     
Insert rows above as necessary 
Cost Proposal: 
Specific wording 
that Responder 
desires to 
protect 

Page Number, 
Section 
Number 

Specific reason 
Responder 
believes the 
language should 
not be disclosed 

North Dakota Century 
Code provision that 
allows NDPERS to 
withhold the 
information if 
requested 

Has this 
information 
ever been 
publicly 
disclosed? 
(Yes/No) 

     
Insert rows above as necessary 

 
The above information has been reviewed by Responder’s legal counsel and is attested to by 
_________________________ (insert name of Responder representative who is authorized to 
contractually bind Responder), on this _____ day of ________, 2024. 
_________________________________ (Signature)   ________________________(Vendor) 

November 2023 Board Book Page 112 of 126



SECTION 9  -  CONFLICTS of INTEREST LIST 
 
  
 
Conflicts of Interest List: 
Bidders must provide a list of all entities with which it has relationships that create, or 
appear to create, a conflict of interest with the work that is contemplated in this request 
for proposals. This list should indicate the name of the entity, the relationship, and a 
discussion of the conflict. 
 

 

 

 

 

  

November 2023 Board Book Page 113 of 126



SECTION 10-  OFFER (Agreements) 
 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES BETWEEN (Name of Contractor) AND 
NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

 
VENDOR (hereinafter CONTRACTOR) has offered to provide services to the State of North 
Dakota acting through its Public Employees Retirement System (hereinafter NDPERS). The 
terms of this Contract shall constitute the services agreement (“Agreement”). 
CONTRACTOR and NDPERS agree to the following: 
 
1) SCOPE OF SERVICES:  CONTRACTOR agrees to provide the service(s) as 

specified in the 2024 bid document and VENDOR proposal (attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference Exhibit A).  

 
2) TERM:  The term of this contract shall be for the period of July 1, 2024 – June 30, 

2026. 
 
3) FEES:  NDPERS shall only pay pursuant to the terms in Exhibit A.   
 
4) BILLINGS:  NDPERS will pay for the services provided by CONTRACTOR 

under this contract pursuant to Exhibit A.  
 
5) TERMINATION:  Either party may terminate this agreement with thirty (30) days 

written notice mailed to the other party, or as mutually agreed to by the parties.  Upon 
any termination the CONTRACTOR shall be compensated as described in Exhibit A 
for services performed up to the date of termination. 

 
In addition, NDPERS by written notice to CONTRACTOR may terminate the  
whole or any part of this Agreement under any of the following conditions: 
 

i. If funding from federal, state, or other sources is not obtained and continued 
at levels sufficient to allow for purchase of the services or supplies in the 
indicated quantities or term. 

 

ii. If federal or state laws or rules are modified or interpreted in a way that the 
services are no longer allowable or appropriate for purchase under this 
Agreement or are no longer eligible for the funding proposed for payments 
authorized by this Agreement. 

 

iii. If any license, permit, or certificate required by law or rule, or by the terms of 
this Agreement, is for any reason denied, revoked, suspended, or not 
renewed. 

 
Termination of this Agreement under this subsection is without prejudice to any 
obligations or liabilities of either party already accrued prior to termination. 
In addition, NDPERS may terminate this Agreement effective upon thirty (30) days 
prior written notice to CONTRACTOR, or any later date stated in the notice:  

 

November 2023 Board Book Page 114 of 126



 
1) If CONTRACTOR fails to provide services required by this Agreement within the 
time specified or any extension agreed to by NDPERS; or  
 

 2)  If CONTRACTOR fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement, 
or so fails to pursue the work as to endanger performance of this Agreement in 
accordance with its terms. 

 
The rights and remedies of NDPERS provided in this subsection are not exclusive 
and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this 
Agreement. 
 

6) ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS: CONTRACTOR may not assign or 
otherwise transfer or delegate any right or duty without STATE’s express written 
consent, provided, however, that CONTRACTOR may assign its rights and 
obligations hereunder in the event of a change of control or sale of all or 
substantially all of its assets related to this Contract, whether by merger, 
reorganization, operation of law, or otherwise.  Should Assignee be a business or 
entity with whom STATE is prohibited from conducting business, STATE shall have 
the right to terminate without cause. 
 
CONTRACTOR may enter into subcontracts provided that any subcontract 
acknowledges the binding nature of this Contract and incorporates this Contract, 
including any attachments. CONTRACTOR is solely responsible for the 
performance of any subcontractor with whom CONTRACTOR contracts. 
CONTRACTOR does not have authority to contract for or incur obligations on 
behalf of NDPERS. 

 
7) ACCESS TO RECORDS AND CONFIDENTIALITY:  The parties agree that all 

participation by NDPERS members and their dependents in programs 
administered by NDPERS is confidential under North Dakota law.  CONTRACTOR 
may request and NDPERS shall provide directly to CONTRACTOR upon such 
request, confidential information necessary for CONTRACTOR to provide the 
services described in Exhibit A. CONTRACTOR shall keep confidential all 
NDPERS information obtained in the course of delivering services.  Failure of 
CONTRACTOR to maintain the confidentiality of such information may be 
considered a material breach of the contract and may constitute the basis for 
additional civil and criminal penalties under North Dakota law.  CONTRACTOR 
has exclusive control over the direction and guidance of the persons rendering 
services under this Agreement.  Upon termination of this Agreement, for any 
reason, CONTRACTOR shall return or destroy all confidential information received 
from NDPERS, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of NDPERS.  
This provision applies to confidential information that may be in the possession of 
subcontractors or agents of CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR shall retain no 
copies of the confidential information.  In the event that CONTRACTOR asserts 
that returning or destroying the confidential information is not feasible, 

November 2023 Board Book Page 115 of 126



CONTRACTOR shall provide to NDPERS notification of the conditions that make 
return or destruction infeasible.  Upon explicit written agreement of NDPERS that 
return or destruction of confidential information is not feasible, CONTRACTOR 
shall extend the protections of this Agreement to that confidential information and 
limit further uses and disclosures of any such confidential information to those 
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as 
CONTRACTOR maintains the confidential information. 

 
CONTRACTOR shall not use or disclose any information it receives from NDPERS 
under this Agreement that NDPERS has previously identified as confidential or 
exempt from mandatory public disclosure except as necessary to carry out the 
purposes of this Agreement or as authorized in advance by NDPERS. NDPERS 
shall not disclose any information it receives from CONTRACTOR that 
CONTRACTOR has previously identified as confidential and that NDPERS 
determines in its sole discretion is protected from mandatory public disclosure 
under a specific exception to the North Dakota public records law, N.D.C.C.  
ch. 44-04. The duty of NDPERS and CONTRACTOR to maintain confidentiality of 
information under this section continues beyond the term of this Agreement.  
 

 CONTRACTOR understands that, except for disclosures prohibited in this 
Agreement, NDPERS must disclose to the public upon request any records it 
receives from CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR further understands that any 
records that are obtained or generated by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement, 
except for records that are confidential under this Agreement, may, under certain 
circumstances, be open to the public upon request under the North Dakota public 
records law. CONTRACTOR agrees to contact NDPERS immediately upon 
receiving a request for information under the public records law and to comply with 
NDPERS’s instructions on how to respond to the request. 

 
 8) APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE: This Agreement is governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of North Dakota. Any action to enforce this 
Contract must be adjudicated exclusively in the state District Court of Burleigh 
County, North Dakota. Each party consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of such court 
and waives any claim of lack of jurisdiction or forum non conveniens. 

 
 9) MERGER AND MODIFICATION: This Agreement, including the following 

documents, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. There are no 
understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified within 
this Agreement. This Agreement may not be modified, supplemented or amended, 
in any manner, except by written agreement signed by both parties.  

  
 Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, in the event of any inconsistency or 

conflict among the documents making up this Agreement, the documents must 
control in this order of precedence: First – the terms of this Agreement, as may be 
amended and Second - the state’s Request for Proposal (attached in Exhibit A) 
and Third – CONTRACTOR’s Proposal (attached in Exhibit A).  No waiver, consent, 

November 2023 Board Book Page 116 of 126



modification or change of terms of this Agreement shall bind either party unless in 
writing and signed by both parties.  Such waiver, consent, modification or change, if 
made, shall be effective only in the specific instances and for the specific  

 purpose given.  There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral 
or written, not specified herein regarding this Agreement. 

 
10) INDEMNITY: CONTRACTOR agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 

the state of North Dakota, its agencies, officers and employees (State), from 
and against claims based on the vicarious liability of the State or its agents, but not 
against claims based on the State's contributory negligence, comparative and/or 
contributory negligence or fault, sole negligence, or intentional misconduct. This 
obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless does not extend to 
professional liability claims arising from professional errors and omissions. The 
legal defense provided by CONTRACTOR to the State under this provision must 
be free of any conflicts of interest, even if retention of separate legal counsel for 
the State is necessary. Any attorney appointed to represent the State must first 
qualify as and be appointed by the North Dakota Attorney General as a Special 
Assistant Attorney General as required under N.D.C.C. § 54-12-08. 
CONTRACTOR also agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold the State harmless for 
all costs, expenses and attorneys' fees incurred if the State prevails in an action 
against CONTRACTOR in establishing and litigating the indemnification 
coverage provided herein. This obligation shall continue after the termination of 
this Agreement. 

 
11) INSURANCE:  Contractor shall secure and keep in force during the term of this 

agreement and Contractor shall require all subcontractors, prior to commencement 
of an agreement between Contractor and the subcontractor, to secure and keep in 
force during the term of this agreement, from insurance companies, government 
self-insurance pools or government self-retention funds, authorized to do business 
in North Dakota, the following insurance coverages:  
1) Commercial general liability, including premises or operations, contractual, 

and products or completed operations coverages (if applicable), with minimum 
liability limits of $2,000,000 per occurrence.  

2) Automobile liability, including Owned (if any), Hired, and Non-Owned 
automobiles, with minimum liability limits of $500,000 per person and 
$2,000,000 per occurrence.  

3) Workers compensation coverage meeting all statutory requirements. The 
policy shall provide coverage for all states of operation that apply to the 
performance of this contract.  

4) Employer’s liability or “stop gap” insurance of not less than $2,000,000 as an 
endorsement on the workers compensation or commercial general liability 
insurance.  

5) Professional errors and omissions with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per 
claim and in the aggregate, Contractor shall continuously maintain such 
coverage during the contract period and for three years thereafter. In the 
event of a change or cancellation of coverage, Contractor shall purchase an 

November 2023 Board Book Page 117 of 126



extended reporting period to meet the time periods required in this section.  
 
The insurance coverages listed above must meet the following additional 
requirements:  
1) Any deductible or self-insured retention amount or other similar obligation 

under the policies shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor. The 
amount of any deductible or self-retention is subject to approval by the State.  

2) This insurance may be in policy or policies of insurance, primary and excess, 
including the so-called umbrella or catastrophe form and must be placed with 
insurers rated “A-” or better by A.M. Best Company, Inc., provided any excess 
policy follows form for coverage. Less than an “A-” rating must be approved 
by the State. The policies shall be in form and terms approved by the State.  

3) The duty to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the State under this 
agreement shall not be limited by the insurance required in this agreement.  

4) The state of North Dakota and its agencies, officers, and employees (State) 
shall be endorsed on the commercial general liability policy, including any 
excess policies (to the extent applicable), as additional insured. The State 
shall have all the benefits, rights and coverages of an additional insured 
under these policies that shall not be limited to the minimum limits of 
insurance required by this agreement or by the contractual indemnity 
obligations of the Contractor.  

5) A “Waiver of Subrogation” waiving any right to recovery the insurance 
company may have against the State.  

6) The Contractor shall furnish a certificate of insurance to the undersigned 
State representative prior to commencement of this agreement. All 
endorsements shall be provided as soon as practicable.  

7) Failure to provide insurance as required in this agreement is a material 
breach of contract entitling the State to terminate this agreement immediately.  

8) Contractor shall provide at least 30 day notice of any cancellation or material 
change to the policies or endorsements. Contractor shall provide on an 
ongoing basis, current certificates of insurance during the term of the 
contract. A renewal certificate will be provided 10 days prior to coverage 
expiration.  
 

12) SEVERABILITY:  If any term in this Agreement is declared by a court having 
jurisdiction to be illegal or unenforceable, the validity of the remaining terms must not 
be affected, and, if possible, the rights and obligations of the parties are to be 
construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain that term.   

 
13) INDEPENDENT ENTITY: CONTRACTOR is an independent entity under this 

Agreement and is not a State employee for any purpose, including the application 
of the Social Security Act, the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Federal Insurance 
Contribution Act, the North Dakota Unemployment Compensation Law and the 
North Dakota Workforce Safety and Insurance Act. CONTRACTOR retains sole 
and absolute discretion in the manner and means of carrying out CONTRACTOR’S 
activities and responsibilities under this Agreement, except to the extent specified 

November 2023 Board Book Page 118 of 126



in this Agreement. 
 
14) NDPERS RESPONSIBILITIES: NDPERS shall cooperate with the 

CONTRACTOR hereunder, including, without limitation, providing the 
CONTRACTOR with reasonable and timely access to data, information and 
personnel of NDPERS.  NDPERS shall be responsible for the performance of its 
personnel and agents and for the accuracy and completeness of data and 
information provided to the CONTRACTOR for purposes of the performance of the 
Services.   

 
15) FORCE MAJEURE:   Neither party shall be held responsible for delay or default 

caused by fire, riot, terrorism, acts of God or war if the event is beyond the party's 
reasonable control and the affected party gives notice to the other party 
immediately upon occurrence of the event causing the delay or default or that is 
reasonably expected to cause a delay or default. 

 
16) ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION – JURY TRIAL: By entering into this 

Contract, NDPERS does not agree to binding arbitration, mediation, or any other 
form of mandatory Alternative Dispute Resolution. The parties may enforce the 
rights and remedies in judicial proceedings. STATE does not waive any right to a 
jury trial. 

 
17) NOTICE:  All notices or other communications required under this contract must 

be given by registered or certified mail and are complete on the date mailed when 
addressed to the parties at the following addresses:  
 
 
NDPERS: 

  
 Scott Miller, Executive Director 
 ND Public Employees Retirement System 
 1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 
 PO Box 1657 
 Bismarck, ND  58502-1657 
 
 CONTRACTOR: 
 
 VENDOR (Name of Contractor & Address) 
 
  
 ________________________ 
  

Notice provided under this provision does not meet the notice requirements for 
monetary claims against the State found at N.D.C.C. § 32-12.2-04. 
 

18) NONDISCRIMINATION AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: CONTRACTOR 

November 2023 Board Book Page 119 of 126



agrees to comply with all applicable federal and state laws, rules, and policies, 
including those relating to nondiscrimination, accessibility and civil rights. (See 
N.D.C.C. Title 34 – Labor and Employment, specifically N.D.C.C. ch. 34-06.1 
Equal Pay for Men and Women.) 

 
CONTRACTOR agrees to timely file all required reports, make required payroll 
deductions, and timely pay all taxes and premiums owed, including sales and use 
taxes, unemployment compensation and workers' compensation premiums. 
CONTRACTOR shall have and keep current at all times during the Term of this 
Contract all licenses and permits required by law. 
 
CONTRATOR is prohibited from boycotting Israel for the duration of this Contract. 
(See N.D.C.C § 54-44.4-15.) CONTRACTOR represents that it does not and will 
not engage in a boycotting Israel during the term of this Contract. If STATE 
receives evidence that CONTRACTOR boycotts Israel, STATE shall determine 
whether the company boycotts Israel. The foregoing does not apply to contracts 
with a total value of less than $100,000 or if CONTRACTOR has fewer than ten 
full-time employees. 
 
CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with this section may be deemed a material 
breach by CONTRACTOR entitling STATE to terminate in accordance with the 
Termination for Cause section of this Contract. 

 
19) STATE AUDIT:  All records, regardless of physical form, and the accounting 

practices and procedures of CONTRACTOR relevant to this Contract are subject 
to examination by the North Dakota State Auditor, the Auditor’s designee, or 
Federal auditors, if required. CONTRACTOR shall maintain all of these records for 
at least three (3) years following completion of this Contract and be able to provide 
them upon reasonable notice. STATE, State Auditor, or Auditor’s designee shall 
provide reasonable notice to CONTRACTOR prior to conducting examination. 

 
20) TAXPAYER ID:  CONTRACTOR’S federal employer ID number is:___________. 
 
21) PAYMENT OF TAXES BY STATE: State is not responsible for and will not pay 

local, state, or federal taxes. State sales tax exemption number is E-2001, and 
certificates will be furnished upon request by the NDPERS. 

 
22) EFFECTIVENESS OF CONTRACT: This Agreement is not effective until fully 

executed by both parties. 
 

November 2023 Board Book Page 120 of 126



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CONTRACTOR and NDPERS have executed this Agreement as 
of the date first written above. 

 
 
 
 

   
NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC        
EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM  CONTRACTOR 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
Executive Director     Signature 

ND Public Employees Retirement System 

       _____________________________ 
        Printed Name 

    
 

______________________________ 
       Title 
 
______________________________  ______________________________  
Date       Date 
 
 

November 2023 Board Book Page 121 of 126



   Fax: (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website  https://ndpers.nd.gov 

TO:   NDPERS Board  

FROM:   Rebecca 

DATE:  November 14, 2023 

SUBJECT:  HB 1040 Implementation Update 

As we have done since the end of the regular session, staff will provide ongoing updates to 
the Board as we continue to implement the provisions of HB 1040 with a January 1, 2025 
effective date.  HB 1548 passed during Special Session allows the Board to certify to 
Legislative Management an earlier date should the Board determine that the plan is ready to 
go.  As things continue to progress with the implementation, staff will notify the Board if the 
plan is ready earlier. 

The following activities have occurred since our last discussion at the October Board 
meeting: 

 Record-keeper RFP responses have been received from 5 vendors.  Callan has
completed their review and will present their findings and recommendation for
finalists at this meeting under a separate agenda item.

 Conducted interviews for the Defined Contribution Retirement Programs Manager
position and offered the position to a candidate.  Marcy Aldinger will begin the
position effective December 1.

 Continued discussions with Sagitec, our business system vendor, regarding
requirements of the bill and updates needed for programming

o Additional questions provided by vendor for staff responses to ensure proper
programming requirements are developed

 Met with counsel to review the administrative rules list and provide input on specific
rules needed.

o It was necessary to reach out to Legislative Council to request a delay in our
rules effective date in order to coincide with January 1, 2025, as we’ll need old
rules to remain effective through December 31, 2024, and then transition to

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System 
1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director 
(701) 328-3900
1-800-803-7377

November 2023 Board Book Page 122 of 126



the new rules on January 1, 2025. Legislative Council requested that Scott 
appear before the Administrative Rules Committee at their next meeting to 
provide this information, which is expected to be in December 

o Requested legal counsel provide first draft of rules to staff by Thanksgiving so
staff can review with the goal of bringing the first draft of proposed rule
changes to the Board at its January meeting.  The final rules will need to be
approved by the Board no later than April to ensure the required time for rule
promulgation with notices and public comment are met

The next Legislative Retirement Committee meeting will be held on November 15.  Scott will 
provide an update on the implementation.  In addition, Scott will advise the Committee of 
the item related to political subdivisions not being able to join the Defined Contribution plan 
as of January 1, 2025, so that if legislators intend to offer the plan in the future to political 
subdivisions not participating as of January 1, 2025, they can propose legislation next 
session to allow it.  Finally, the Retirement Committee requested that Sagitec provide the 
Committee with an overview of the business system programming needed to implement the 
bill.   

This item was informational and does not require any action by the Board. 

November 2023 Board Book Page 123 of 126



VI. DEFERRED COMPENSATION / DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
A. HB 1040 Implementation Update
B. Recordkeeper Request For Proposal Vendor Selection

*EXECUTIVE SESSION

*Executive Session pursuant to N.D.C.C. §44-04-19.1(9) and §44-04-19.2) to
discuss negotiating strategy or provide negotiating instructions to its attorney or
other negotiator.

Material for the Closed Session will be sent under 
separate cover.

November 2023 Board Book Page 124 of 126



A. Uniform Group Insurance Consultant Request For Proposal 
Best And Final Offer Update *EXECUTIVE SESSION

*Executive Session pursuant to N.D.C.C. §44-04-19.1(9) and

§44-04-19.2) to discuss negotiating strategy or provide
negotiating instructions to its attorney or other negotiator.

Material for the Closed Session will be sent under separate 
cover.

VII. GROUP INSURANCE / FLEXCOMP

November 2023 Board Book Page 125 of 126



VIII. MEMBER **EXECUTIVE SESSION
         A.   Retirement Benefit Appeal Case #829   
         B.   Benefit Appeal Case #828 

**Executive Session pursuant to N.D.C.C. §44-04-19.2, §44-04-19.2(1) and/
or §54-52-26 to discuss confidential records or confidential member 
information.

Material for the Closed Session will be sent under separate cover.

November 2023 Board Book Page 126 of 126


	AGENDA
	III. PRESENTATIONS
	A. Actuarial Valuation
	Attachment


	IV. MISCELLANEOUS
	A. Executive Director Retirement/Recruitment
	B. Committee Assignments
	C. 2024 Board Meeting Dates
	D. December Board Meeting Discussion
	E. Contracts Under $10,000
	Attachment

	F. Ratification of Board Action Items
	G. Required Minimum Distributn Change

	V. DEFINED BENEFIT
	A. Retirement Plan Services Request For Proposal (RFP)
	Attachment


	VI. DEFERRED COMPENSATION / DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
	A. HB 1040 Implementation Update
	B. Recordkeeper Request For Proposal Vendor Selection *EXECUTIVE SESSION

	VII. GROUP INSURANCE / FLEXCOMP
	A. Uniform Group Insurance Consultant Request For Proposal Best And Final Offer Update *EXECUTIVE SESSION

	VIII. MEMBER **EXECUTIVE SESSION
	A. Retirement Benefit Appeal Case #829
	B. Benefit Appeal Case #828




